
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 
 
AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Wednesday, 2 May 2018 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee 
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do 
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the 
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm. 
 

24 April 2018 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

3. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

  
 i)  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
ii)  Other Interests.  

 

4. External Audit Planned Audit Fee 2018/19 (Pages 7 - 10) 

5. External Audit Update (Pages 11 - 26) 

6. Revised Treasury Strategy 2018-19 (Pages 27 - 56) 

7. Amendment to Accounting Policy - Property, Plant and Equipment (Pages 57 - 62) 

8. Whistleblowing - Update (Pages 63 - 70) 

9. Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2018/19 (Pages 71 - 78) 

10. 2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report (Pages 79 - 98) 

11. Work Programme (Pages 99 - 100) 

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Councillor J Douglas (Chair) Councillor F Sloman (Vice-Chair) 

 

Public Document Pack



Councillor A Barrow Councillor C Boynton 
Councillor S Helliwell Councillor N Longos 
Councillor J Pritchard Councillor J Todd 
Councillor J Walton P Grant 
C Morgan  

 



1 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Wednesday, 14 February 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor J Douglas (Chair) 
 

 Councillors D Kerr (substitute for N Longos), A McKeown (substitute for A 
Barrow), Morgan, J Pritchard, K Sizeland (substitute for S Helliwell), J Todd 
and J Wharmby (substitute for C Boynton) 
 
Independent Person – Mrs C Morgan  
 
Grant Patterson (External Audit),  and Councillor E Thrane were also in 
attendance 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A Barrow, C Boynton, 
S Helliwell and N Longos 
 

18/34 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 

18/35 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
Consideration was given to the appointment of Independent Members to the 
Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Mr Peter Grant and Mrs Cheryl Morgan be appointed as Independent 
Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee. 
 
(Mrs Cheryl Morgan joined the meeting after consideration of this item.) 
 

18/36 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR 2016/17 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
Councillors were presented with a summary of the results of External Audit 
work carried out for the year ending 31st March 2017. There had been no 
significant matters arising and the auditors had issued an unqualified 
opinion.  The Council had proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effective ness in its use of resources. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 14 February 2018 

 

2 
 

It was reported that Allison Rhodes had moved on within Grant Thornton.  
The Committee requested that their thanks and appreciation be conveyed to 
Allison for all her hard work. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the Annual Audit Letter for 2016/17 be noted. 

 
18/37 CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 
The report summarised work undertaken to certify the Housing Benefit 
Subsidy claim submitted by the Authority which found that the Council had 
appropriate arrangements to compile a complete, accurate and timely claim 
for audit certification.  An assurance statement on the Council's annual 
Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return for 2016/17 was also provided.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Annual Grant Certification Letter 2016/17 be noted. 

 
18/38 EXTERNAL AUDIT 2017/18 AUDIT PLAN 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 
Councillors considered the External Audit Plan for 2017/18.  This included 
matters relating to materiality, significant risks, the approach to securing 
value for money and the audit cycle. Monitoring, joint venture Alliance 
Environment Services, valuation estimates, accounting issues and policy 
decisions were discussed. 
 
RECOMMENDED: 

 
That Council be recommended to note the External Audit Plan for 2017/18. 

 
18/39 EXTERNAL AUDIT INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT 

(Agenda Item 8) 
 
The purpose of the report was to contribute towards the effective two-way 
communication between auditors and the Council's Audit and Regulatory 
Committee.  Monitoring, appropriate controls and joint venture 
arrangements were considered. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

18/40 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE (OVERVIEW OF STRATEGIC, 
OPERATIONAL AND PROJECT RISKS) 
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Committee considered a report the purpose of which was to allow the 
robust scrutiny of the Council’s risk management arrangements in 
accordance with generally accepted good practice.  Changes to the 

Page 4




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 14 February 2018 

 

3 
 

scheduled completion date for work at the Octagon and the high operational 
risk profile were discussed. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Council’s current risk position be noted.  

 

2. That the mitigation plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks) 
and Appendix B (operational risks) of the report be approved. 

 
18/41 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - PROGRESS AGAINST 2016/17 

ACTION PLAN 
(Agenda Item 10) 
 
Regulations required the Council to conduct a review each financial year of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control and approve an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).  The AGS Action Plan (Appendix 1 of the 
report) outlined the progress made against the required actions as at the 
end of December 2017. Changes to the operating model for the waste 
collection service and the delay in completing Phase 1 works at the Pavilion 
Gardens were discussed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the progress information contained within the report be noted. 

 
18/42 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

(Agenda Item 11) 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2017/18 was 
scrutinised in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 
and generally accepted good practice.  Discussion took place on a possible 
rise in the Bank of England interest rate. 
 
RECOMMENDED: 

 
That the Treasury Management position (as at 31st December 2017) be 
noted. 
 

18/43 2018/19 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
(Agenda Item 12) 
 
The purpose of the report was to allow members of the Committee to 
consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 
2018/19 to ensure that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years were affordable and properly managed.  The Council’s capital 
expenditure plans and how these plans were to be financed were discussed. 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
 

Page 5




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 14 February 2018 

 

4 
 

That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 
2018/19 be approved. 
 

18/44 2017/2018 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT 
(Agenda Item 13) 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to “undertake an 
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”.  In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit Committee on 
the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.  
 
Consideration was given to the Elections Audit report, effect of the Parliamentary 
election being called at short notice and some procurement responsibility being 
outside of the Council’s control. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the progress information contained within the report be noted. 

 
18/45 WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

(Agenda Item 14) 
 
Consideration was given to the Committee work programme for 2018/19. 
The Code of Practice would be added. It was reported that once all 3 
Independent members were in place a new skills audit would be undertaken 
and training arranged.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the above, the Committee Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 7.36 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 6



Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

High Peak Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2018

2 May 2018

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

This paper provides the Audit & Regulatory Committee with a report on 

progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues w hich the Committee may w ish to 

consider (these are a tool to use, if  helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee can f ind further useful material on our w ebsite, w here w e have a 

section dedicated to our w ork in the public sector. Here you can dow nload copies of our publications. Click on the 

Grant Thornton logo to be directed to the w ebsite w ww.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you w ould like further information on any items in this briefing, or w ould like to register w ith Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

transitioning-successfully/

Introduction

2

Grant Patterson

Engagement Lead

T +44 121 232 5269

M +44 788 045 6114

E Grant.B.Patterson@uk.gt.com

Avtar Sohal

Senior Audit Manager

T +44 121 232 5420

M +44 782 511 2538

E Avtar.S.Sohal@uk.gt.com

P
age 12

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Value for Money

The scope of our w ork is set out in the guidance issued 

by the National Audit Off ice. The Code requires auditors 

to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, eff iciency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

signif icant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working w ith partners and other third parties

We have completed our initial risk assessment and 

reported this to you in our Audit Plan w hich w as 

presented in February.

We w ill report our w ork in the Audit Findings Report and 

give our Value For Money Conclusion by the deadline in 

July 2018.

Progress to date

3

Other areas

Certif ication of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual Housing 

Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance w ith procedures 

agreed w ith the Department for Work and Pensions. 

This certif ication w ork for the 2017/18 claim w ill be 

concluded by November 2018.

The results of the certif ication w ork are reported to you 

in our certif ication letter.

Meetings

We w ill meet w ith Finance Officers as part of our liaison 

meetings and continue to be in discussions w ith f inance 

staff regarding emerging developments and to ensure 

the audit process is smooth and effective. 

Events

We provide a range of w orkshops, along w ith netw ork 

events for members and publications to support the 

Council. We also hold individual sessions w ith your 

Members and Finance team w here specif ic issues 

w arrant discussion or training. Further details of the 

publications that may be of interest to the Council are 

set out in our Sector Update section of this report.

Financial Statements Audit

We presented out detailed audit plan for the 2017/18 

f inancial statements to you in February 2018.  This 

set out our proposed approach to the audit of the 

Council's 2017/18 f inancial statements.

We continue to keep our plan under review  and have 

now  completed our interim fieldw ork visit w hich 

included::

• Updating our review  of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updating our understanding of your f inancial 

systems

• Review  of Internal Audit reports on core f inancial 

systems

• Early w ork on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

We have not identif ied any issues w hich w ill impact 

upon our reported plan.  We can confirm that w e 

have determined to set a low er specif ic materiality for 

senior off icer remuneration disclosures of 2% on the 

total expenditure (including pension contributions) 

disclosed in the note. 

The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2017/18 

opinion is brought forw ard by tw o months to 31 July 

2018. The final accounts audit is due to begin in June  

w ith f indings reported to you in the Audit Findings 

Report by the earlier deadline of July 2018.

P
age 13



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Audit Deliverables

4

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2017/18.

April 2017 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our 

proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2017-18 financial statements.

February 2018 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our within our Progress Report.

April 2018 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Committee.

July 2018 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money 

conclusion.

July 2018 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

September 2018 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Not yet due

P
age 14



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Results of Interim Audit Work

5

The f indings of our interim audit w ork, and the impact of our f indings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below :

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Audit Plan – lower 

specific materiality 

for senior office 

remuneration

disclosures

Senior off icers remuneration disclosures includes salaries and pensions 

information and also termination benefits. We consider the w hole of this note to 

be of particular interest to the reader and could affect decisions of users of the 

accounts. The disclosures are considered to be sensitive and could influence the 

users of the f inancial statements. In our view  users w ould be influenced if 

disclosures w ere incomplete, for example excluded exit packages or payments 

made via service companies or incorrect values for starters and leavers. We have 

considered sensitivity and scrutiny these transactions are subject to and our 

approach is to audit the note as a separate area and set a materiality level 

specif ic to this note. 

Our materiality level w ill be based on the total expenditure 

(including pension contributions) disclosed in the note applying 2% 

of this and a TE of 75% in line w ith our main materiality. This level 

in our view  is that economic decisions of users of the accounts 

w ould not be impacted by any low er value errors. Our approach is 

to check that all senior off icers in post during the year have been 

included in the disclosures and to audit the salary f igures for all 

senior off icers (as all are paid more than the specif ic performance 

materiality set), together w ith any expense allow ances and pension 

contributions higher than performance materiality to ensure they 

are accurate.

Internal audit We have completed a high level review  of internal audit's overall arrangements. 

Our w ork has not identif ied any issues w hich w e w ish to bring to your attention. 

We have also review ed internal audit's w ork on the Council's key f inancial 

systems to date. We have not identif ied any signif icant w eaknesses impacting on 

our responsibilities.  

Overall, w e have concluded that the internal audit service provides 

an independent and satisfactory service to the Council and that 

internal audit w ork contributes to an effective internal control 

environment..

Our review  of internal audit w ork has not identif ied any w eaknesses 

w hich impact on our audit approach. 

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment relevant to 

the preparation of the f inancial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged w ith governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our w ork has identif ied no material w eaknesses w hich are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council’s f inancial statements.

Journal entry 

controls

We have review ed the Councils’ journal entry policies and procedures as part of 
determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not identif ied any material 
w eaknesses w hich are likely to adversely impact on the Council's control 
environment or f inancial statements.

To date w e have undertaken detailed testing on journal transactions recorded for 
the f irst nine months of the f inancial year, by extracting 'unusual' entries for further 

review . No issues have been identif ied that w e w ish to highlight for your attention.

Our w ork has not identif ied any w eaknesses in the Council’s 

journal entry policies or control environment.

We w ill carry out further testing of journals for the remainder of the 

f inancial year ending 31 March 2018  as part of our f inal audit visit 

in June 2018.

P
age 15



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018 6

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Walkthrough testing We have completed w alkthrough tests of the Council' s controls operating in 

areas w here w e consider that there is a risk of material misstatement to the 

f inancial statements, w hich include;  

- employee remuneration 

- operating expenses 

- property plant and equipment

Our w ork has not identif ied any issues w hich w e w ish to bring to your attention. 

Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in accordance w ith our 

documented understanding.

Our w ork has not identif ied any w eaknesses w hich impact on our 

audit approach. 

Early substantive

testing

As part of our interim testing w e have commenced audit testing in the follow ing 
areas for the f irst 11 months of the year ending 31 March 2018; 

• Precept Demands – w e have tested a sample of precept demands 

• Grant Revenues – w e have tested a sample of grant receipts

• Other Revenues – w e have tested a sample of transactions

• Employee Remuneration – w e have completed a substantive analytical 
review  

• Operating Expenditure – w e have tested a sample of transactions

PPE Valuation - We have contacted the Council’s valuer and review ed the 
appropriateness of your valuation policy and approach. We have also tested 
the inputs provided to the valuer.

Our testing up until March 2018 has not identif ied any issues or w eaknesses 
w hich w e w ant to bring to your attention.

We w ill complete our f inal testing in these areas for the remainder 

of the f inancial year ending 31 March 2018 as part of our f inal audit 

visit in June 2018. We w ill report any issues or w eaknesses in our 

ISA 260 report and present this to committee members.

Joint Operation with 

ANSA

We have carried out a review  of the Council’s assessment of the joint operation 
w ith ANSA for the w aste collection under the company Alliance Environmental 
Services.

Our review  has found that w e are satisfied w ith the conclusions 

draw n by the Council’s assessment of the joint operation and to 

account for it line w ith IFRS 11 i.e. the authority’s share of the 

balances, income and expenditure and cash flow s of such a 

collaborative arrangement are consolidated line by line into the 

authority’s ow n Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement, Cash Flow  Statement and Balance Sheet. (i.e. there is 

no requirement for group accounts). As part of our f inal audit 

procedures w e w ill determine our audit approach and review  the 

f inal application of the consolidation to the f inancial statements and 

ensure that it is in line w ith our expectations.

Results of Interim Audit Work continued

P
age 16



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 
emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 
cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 
wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 
the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 
out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 
on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 
research publications in this update. We also include areas of 
potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 
with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 
regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

7

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 
specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

P
age 17



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Financial sustainability of local authorities 2018

This National Audit Office report reviews financial 

sustainability across  Local Government and examines 

whether the MHCLG, along with other departments with 

responsibility for local services, understands the impact of 

funding reductions on the financial and service sustainability 

of local authorities.

The report concludes that current pattern of grow ing overspends on services and dw indling 

reserves exhibited by an increasing number of authorities is not sustainable over the medium 

term. The f inancial future for many authorities is less certain than in 2014, w hen the NAO 

last looked at f inancial sustainability. It also notes that the f inancial uncertainty created by 

delayed reform to the local government f inancial system risks longer-term value for money.

The NAO’s view  is that the sector has done w ell to manage substantial funding reductions 

since 2010-11, but f inancial pressure has increased markedly since the 2014 review .. 

Services other than adult social care are continuing to face reducing funding despite 

anticipated increases in council tax. Local authorities face a range of new  demand and cost 

pressures w hile their statutory obligations have not been reduced. Non-social-care budgets 

have already been reduced substantially, so many authorities have less room for manoeuvre 

in f inding further savings. The scope for local discretion in service provision is also eroding 

even as local authorities strive to generate alternative income streams.

Key findings include:

• Financial resilience varies betw een authorities, w ith some having substantially low er 

reserves levels than others. Levels of total reserves in social care authorities as a w hole 

are higher now  than in 2010-11. How ever, there is variation in individual authorities’ 

ability to build up their reserves and differences in the rate at w hich they have begun to 

draw  them dow n. Some 10.6% of single-tier and county councils w ould have the 

equivalent of less than three years’ w orth of total reserves (earmarked and unallocated 

combined) left if  they continued to use their reserves at the rate they did in 2016-17.

• A section 114 notice has been issued at one authority, w hich indicates that it is at risk of 

failing to balance its books in this f inancial year. In February 2018, the statutory f inancial 

off icer for Northamptonshire County Council issued a section 114 notice, indicating that it 

w as at risk of spending more in the f inancial year than the resources it has available, 

w hich w ould be unlaw ful.

• MHCLG’s w ork to assess the sector’s funding requirements as part of the 2015 Spending 

Review  w as better than the w ork it undertook for the 2013 Spending Review . The 

Department’s advice to ministers in 2015 drew  on a more comprehensive evidence base, 

including data returns from 12 departments.

• The government has announced multiple short-term funding initiatives in recent years 

and does not have a long-term funding plan for local authorities. In 2016-17, the 

Department offered a four-year settlement to all authorities to enable better f inancial 

planning. How ever, there have been many changes to funding streams outside this core 

offer. The funding landscape follow ing the 2015 Spending Review  has been 

characterised by one-off and short-term funding initiatives. 

• There is also uncertainty over the long-term financial plan for the sector. The absolute 

scale of future funding is unknow n until the completion of the next Spending Review . The 

government has confirmed its intention to implement the results of the Fair Funding 

Review  in 2020-21 and to allow  local authorities to retain 75% of business rates. 

How ever, the implications of these changes are not yet clear. 

• There is a lack of ongoing coordinated monitoring of the impact of funding reductions 

across the full range of local authority services.

8

P
age 18



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Public Sector Audit Appointments: Report on the 
results of auditors’ work 2016/17

This is the third report on the results of auditors’ work at local 

government bodies published by PSAA. It summarises the 

results of auditors’ work at 497 principal bodies and 9,752 

small bodies for 2016/17. The report covers the timeliness 

and quality of financial reporting, auditors’ local value for 

money work, and the extent to which auditors used their 

statutory reporting powers.

The timeliness and quality of f inancial reporting for 2016/17, as reported by auditors, 

remained broadly consistent w ith the previous year for both principal and small bodies . 

Compared w ith 2015/16, the number of principal bodies that received an unqualif ied audit 

opinion by 31 July show ed an encouraging increase. 83 principal bodies (17 per cent) 

received an unqualif ied opinion on their accounts by the end of July compared w ith 49 (10 

per cent) for 2015/16. These bodies appear to be w ell positioned to meet the earlier statutory 

accounts publication timetable that w ill apply for 2017/18 accounts.

Less positively, the proportion of principal bodies w here the auditor w as unable to issue the 

opinion by 30 September increased compared to 2015/16. Auditors at 92 per cent of councils 

(331 out of 357) w ere able to issue the opinion on the accounts by 30 September 2017, 

compared to 96 per cent for the previous year. This is a disappointing development in the 

context of the challenging new  reporting timetable from 2017/18. All police bodies, 29 out of 

30 fire and rescue authorities and all other local government bodies received their audit 

opinions by 30 September 2017.

The number of qualif ied conclusions on value for money arrangements has remained 

relatively constant at 7 per cent (30 councils, 2 f ire and rescue authorities and 1 other local 

government body) compared to 8 per cent for 2015/16. The most common reasons for 

auditors issuing non-standard conclusions on the 2016/17 accounts w ere:

• the impact of issues identif ied in the reports of statutory inspectorates;

• corporate governance issues; and

• f inancial sustainability.

The latest results of auditors’ w ork on the f inancial year to 31 March 2017 show  a solid 

position for the majority of principal local government bodies. Generally, high standards of 

f inancial reporting are being maintained despite the f inancial and service delivery challenges 

currently facing local government.

9

P
age 19

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Changes to the prudential framework of capital 
finance
The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government 

has updated the Local Authority Investments Guidance and 

the Minimum Revenue following its publication of consultation 

responses on 2 February 2018.

A total of 213 consultation responses w ere received by the MHCLG by the 22 December 

2017 deadline from across local government. Follow ing consideration of the responses the 

Government has:

• made some technical changes to the Investments Guidance and MRP Guidance

• amended proposals relating to useful economic lives of assets

• implemented the Investments Guidance for 2018-19, but allow ed flexibility on w hen the 

additional disclosure f irst need to be presented to full Council

• deferred implementation of MRP Guidance to 2019-20 apart from the guidance 

“Changing methods for calculating MRP”, w hich applies from 1 April 2018.

Key changes are noted below .

Statutory Guidance on Local Authority Investments

Transparency and democratic accountability – the revised guidance retains the 

requirement for an Investment Strategy to be prepared at least annually and introduces 

some additional disclosures to improve transparency. How ever, as the changes to the 

CIPFA  Prudential Code include a new  requirement for local authorities to prepare a Capital 

Strategy, the revised guidance allow s the matters required to be disclosed in the Investment 

Strategy to be disclosed in the Capital Strategy.

Principle of contribution – the consultation sought view s on the introduction of a new  

principle requiring local authorities to disclose the contribution that non-core investments 

make tow ards core functions. Authorities’ core objectives include ‘service delivery objectives 

and/or placemaking role.’ This clarif ication has been made to recognise the fact that local 

authorities have a key role in facilitating the long term regeneration and economic grow th of 

their local areas and that they may w ant to hold long term investments to facilitate this.

Introduction of a concept of proportionality – the Government is concerned that some 

local authorities may become overly dependent on commercial income as a source of 

revenue for delivering statutory services. The consultation sought view s on requiring local 

authorities to disclose their dependence on commercial income to deliver statutory services 

and the amount of borrow ing that has been committed to generate that income. A majority of 

respondents supported the introduction of a concept of proportionality, recognising the 

importance that local authorities make decisions based on an understanding of the overall 

risk that they face.

Borrowing in advance of need – by bringing non-financial investments (held primarily or 

partially to generate a profit) w ithin the scope of the Investments Guidance, the consultation 

proposals made it clear that borrow ing to fund acquisition of non-f inancial assets solely to 

generate a profit is not prudential. The Investment Guidance requires local authorities w ho 

have borrow ed in advance of need solely to generate a profit to explain w hy they have 

chosen to disregard statutory guidance.  It is also important to note that nothing in the 

Investment Guidance or the Prudential Code overrides statute, and local authorities w ill still 

need to consider w hether any novel transaction is law ful by reference to legislation.

Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance

The consultation sought view s on proposals to update the guidance relating to MRP to 

ensure local authorities are making prudent provision for the repayment of debt.

Meaning of a charge to the revenue account – the Government does not believe that 

crediting the revenue account is either prudent or w ithin the spirit of the approach set out in 

the relevant Regulations. For this reason a charge to the account should not be a negative 

charge.

Impact of changing methods of calculating MRP – the Government does not expect any 

local authority to recalculate MRP charged in prior years due to the proposed changes in 

methodology. 

10

Changes to capital finance framework

Challenge question: 

Has your Head of Finance briefed members on the impact of the 

changes to the prudential framew ork of capital f inance?

Introduction of a maximum economic life of assets – the 

consultation sought view s on setting a maximum useful 

economic life of 50 years for freehold land and 40 years for 

other assets. The MRP Guidance w ill set a maximum life of 50 

years, but allow  local authorities to exceed this w here the 

related debt is PFI debt w ith a longer term than 50 years, or 

w here a local authority has an opinion from an appropriately 

qualif ied person that an operational asset w ill deliver benefits 

for more than 50 years.

P
age 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

CIPFA publications - The Prudential Code and 
Treasury Management Code

CIPFA have published an updated ‘Prudential Code for 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities’. Key developments 

include the introduction of more contextual reporting 

through the requirement to produce a capital strategy 

along with streamlined indicators. 

The framew ork established by the Prudential Code should support local strategic 

planning, local asset management planning and proper option appraisal. The 

objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, w ithin this clear framew ork, that the 

capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code 

w hen carrying out their duties in England and Wales under Part 1 of the Local 

Government Act 2003, in Scotland under Part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland 

Act 2003, and in Northern Ireland under Part 1 of the Local Government Finance Act 

(Northern Ireland) 2011.

11

CIPFA Publication

Challenge question: 

Has your Head of Finance briefed members on the 

impact of the changes to the prudential code?                                                  

.

Since the Prudential Code w as last updated 

in 2011, the landscape for public service 

delivery has changed signif icantly follow ing 

the sustained period of reduced public 

spending and the developing localism 

agenda. It reflects the increasing diversity in 

the sector and new  structures, w hilst 

providing for streamlined reporting and 

indicators to encourage better understanding 

of local circumstances and improve decision 

making.

The introduction of a capital strategy allow s 

individual local authorities to give greater 

w eight to local circumstances and explain 

their approach to borrow ing and investment.

The Code is available in hard copy and 

online.

CIPFA have also published  an updated Treasury 

Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 

and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Code provides 

a framework for effective treasury management in public 

sector organisations. 

The Code defines treasury management as follow s:

The management of the organisation’s investments and cash f low s, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated w ith those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 

w ith those risks. 

It is primarily designed for the use of local authorities (including police and crime 

commissioners and fire authorities), providers of social housing, higher and further 

education institutions, and the NHS. Local authorities in England, Scotland and Wales 

are required to ‘have regard’ to the Code.

Since the last edition of the TM Code w as published in 2011, the landscape for public 

service delivery has changed signif icantly follow ing the sustained period of reduced 

public spending and the developing localism agenda.

There are signif icant treasury management portfolios w ithin the public 

services, for example, as at 31 March 2016, UK local authorities had 

outstanding borrow ing of £88bn and investments of £32bn

.The Code is available in hard copy and online.

P
age 21



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Overview of the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR)

12

What is it?

The GDPR is the most significant development in data protection for 20 years. It 
introduces new rights for individuals and new obligations for public and private 
sector organisations. 

What’s next?

Many public sector organisations have already developed strategic plans to 
implement the GDPR, which require policy, operational, governance and 
technology changes to ensure compliance by 25th May 2018. 

How will this affect 

you? 

What organisations 

need to do by May 

2018  

 All organisations that process personal data will be affected by the GDPR. 

 The definition of 'personal data' has been clarified to include any data that can identify a living individual, either directly or 
indirectly. Various unique personal identifiers (including online cookies and IP addresses) will fall within the scope of personal 
data

 Local government organisations need to be able to provide evidence of completion of their GDPR work to internal and external 
stakeholders, to internal audit and to regulators. 

 New policies and procedures need to be fully signed off and operational. 

Organisation Accountability Notifications and Rights Claims and Fines

 Organisations must document their assurance 

procedures, and make them available to regulators

 Some organisations need to designate a Data 

Protection Officer, who has expert knowledge of data 

protection law

 Organisations must notify significant data 

breaches to regulators within 72 hours

 Organisations must explain to individuals what 

their rights over their personal information are and 

how it is being processed and protected

 For the most serious data breaches, privacy 

regulators can impose penalties of up to €20 

million on public sector organisations, 

 Individuals and representative organisations can 

claim compensation for infringements of data 

protection law
Questions for your organisation:
• Can your organisation erase personal data effectively?

• Have you appointed a Data Protection Officer if required to have one?

• How will your organisation ensure citizens know how their data is being used and whether it’s being shared with other 
organisations? 

P
age 22



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Commercial Healthcheck: commercial 
investments and governance

Our latest healthcheck report was launched at CIPFA’s 

Income Generation Summit in November. It is part of our ‘The 

Income Spectrum’ series, giving leaders of local government 

and public services insights into why and how local authorities 

are changing their approach to commercialisation, some of 

the related governance and risk management issues, and the 

latest innovation trends with case studies ranging from Angus 

and Luton to Oldham and Stirling. 

The research show s that councils need to do more than simply adhere to the drafted rules to 

ensure an approach to commercialisation that balances outcomes and risks. The report 

therefore also includes a healthcheck diagnostic tool designed to give local government 

leaders extra comfort and confidence that they are pursuing a suitably balanced approach

Governance of commercial commitments is key to building confidence in the path to f inancial 

sustainability. The CIPFA code is the sector’s primary rule book for treasury management 

and is expected to place a stronger emphasis on how  councils w ill balance security, liquidity 

and return.

Key findings from the report include:

• While property has tended to be the focus, it is just one of a number of areas of activity. 

In the past year, borrow ing includes £4.8 billion on bonds and commercial paper, and 

investment includes £7 billion in inter-authority lending (Investment in property for 

councils is a grow ing trend – a third of councils have done so since 2010, spending more 

than £2.4 billion betw een them, but this is the not the only major area of investment 

activity)

• More entrepreneurial councils are adopting innovative approaches such as place-based 

market offerings, w orking together locally to add social value and cross-boundary 

franchising

13

Grant Thornton Publication

Challenge question: 

Is your Authority considering the risks and governance 

issues for its commercialisation agenda?

• For many councils, investing in commercial assets is key 

to developing anchor institutions that contribute to place 

– ranging from airports, business parks and forestry to 

GP surgeries and cinemas

• A ‘beyond compliance’ approach to governance of 

commercial activities is required by progressive councils 

w anting to do more w ith less

Click on the report cover to dow nload and read more

P
age 23

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-key-headlines-from-solace/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Cost Assurance

Our Cost Assurance service line provides Local Authorities 

with an independent and retrospective audit of their legacy 

telecommunications and utilities costs incurred during the 

past 6 years (as per the Statute of Limitation).

We find that there are repeat errors contained w ithin a Suppliers’ invoice arrangements –

errors that aren’t necessarily picked up by the end client.  This is due to the fact that they 

tend to be contained in suppliers’ billing systems ‘at source’ and are much further dow n the 

supply chain w hich the user w on’t necessarily have visibility of.

We are supported by a comprehensive library of legacy supplier pricing that has been 

collated since 2011.  Our one aim is to ensure that the client has only paid for the services 

used during the period by:

• ensuring that bills presented by Suppliers' are in line w ith their contracts and relevant 

pricing mechanisms

• ensuring the client receives the Supplier refunds w here errors have been identif ied by us 

• ensuring consequential savings are identif ied and implemented immediately for the client

Our Cost Assurance w ork is based on a contingent-fee model and is supported by PSAA 

Ltd.  Each of our Local Authority engagements include a fee cap to ensure governance and 

regulatory standards are maintained.

In summary, w e are able to bring much needed financial benefit to the sector as w ell as 

providing insight into errors that may be prone to repeat offence by suppliers long after our 

w ork is concluded.

Did you know….

14

Of Public Sector engagements are Local Government

55%

Error rate – rebates versus spend volume
2.84%

Rebate opportunities identified
£3.55m

Annual spend analysed
£125m

Fee income identified
£1.1m

Number of Public Sector engagements to date
40

Grant Thornton Challenge question: 

Has your Authority considered the potential for an independent review  

of telecommunications and utility costs?

P
age 24



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Grant Thornton w ebsite links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/commercial-healthcheck-in-local-authorities/

http://w ww.cfoinsights.co.uk/

PSAA w ebsite links

https://w ww.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-w ork/

MHCLG w ebsite links

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-f inance

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition

CIPFA w ebsite link

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2017-edition-book

National Audit Office link

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018/

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/

15

Links

P
age 25

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/commercial-healthcheck-in-local-authorities/
http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2017-edition-book
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 26



 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

2nd May 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached: 
Appendix A – Revised Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19 
 
1. Purpose of the Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow members of the Committee to 

consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 
2018/19, ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years are affordable and properly managed. 
 

1.2 The Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 has been revised to take 
account of the proposed procurement of refuse vehicles - as the most cost 
effective method of financing.  As detailed in the report ‘Alliance 
Environment Services – Financing of Vehicle Fleet to Council on 3rd May 
2018. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 
 

2.1. That the Revised Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
(TMSS) 2018/19 is recommended to Council for approval. 

 
 
  

TITLE:   Revised Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (TMSS) 2018/19 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Finance & Operational Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
 Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner 
 

WARDS: Non-Specific 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1. The Council is required, in accordance with the Local Government Act 

2003, to produce an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
before the commencement of each financial year.  

 
3.2. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the 

Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code 
of Practice. The Council is required to set prudential and treasury 
indicators for the next four years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

 
3.3. The 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement has been revised 

to take into account the changes in the Capital Programme necessary to 
meet the costs of financing the Council’s vehicle fleet following the 
decision to end the previous contract hire arrangements. The statement  
comprises three principal areas: 

 

a. Capital Programme (section 6) 

 The capital plans and the prudential indicators 

 The minimum revenue provision (MRP) Policy 

 

b. Treasury Management (section 7) 

 Current Treasury position 

 Treasury Indicators  

 Prospects for Interest Rates  

 The Borrowing Strategy 

 

c. The Annual Investment Strategy (section 8) 

 Investment Policy 

 Creditworthiness Policy 

 Investment Income 

 
3.4. Members are asked to note the controls that have been put in place to 

manage the Council’s treasury management risks and activities and to 
endorse the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1. Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and 

management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 

Page 28



financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

 
 

5 Options 

 
5.1 This report sets the proposed treasury management approach based upon 

the Council’s financial plans.  
 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
  None 
 
6.2 Workforce 
  None 
 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
  This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's equality  
  and diversity policies. 
 
6.4 Financial Considerations 
  Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.  
 
6.5 Legal  
  None 
 
6.6 Sustainability 

None 
 
6.7 Internal and External Consultation 

None 
 
6.8 Risk Assessment 

There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with treasury 
management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/or 
deposits.   
 
The Council has engaged Link Asset Services (formerly Capita Asset 
Services) as its treasury management advisors. 
 
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the 
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy, which is the 
subject of this report. The Strategy includes a number of risk management 
features such as the overriding priority that security of deposit takes 
precedence over return on investment. 

Page 29



   
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer 

 
 

Background Papers Location Contacts 

‘Treasury Management – 
Governance and Scrutiny 
Arrangements’ 
 (Audit & Regulatory 
 Committee Sep 09) 

 
 

Town Hall, Buxton Claire Hazeldene 
Finance & Procurement Manager 
Tel. 01538 395400 #4191 
 
Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 
Tel. 01538 395400 #4186 

Page 30



APPENDIX A 
 
 
 

 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 

 

Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement  

 

 

2018/19 
 

 

Page 31



1. Introduction 
 

1.1. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly 
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of 
the treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is 
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus 
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council's low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

 
1.2. The second main function of the treasury management service is the 

funding of the Council's capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide 
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow 
planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending 
obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve arranging 
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council 
risk or cost objectives. 

 
1.3. Treasury Management is defined by the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as “The management of the local 
authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.”  The Council’s Treasury Management Policy 
Statement is included at Annex 1. 

 
2. Reporting Requirements 

 
2.1. The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 

reports each year. The three main reports are: 
 

a. Treasury Strategy, which looks forward at least three years and 
includes: 

 Treasury Management Strategy, explaining how the investments 
and borrowings are to be organised, including treasury indicators;  

 The Council’s capital plans, including prudential indicators; 

 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, stating how residual 
capital expenditure is charged to revenue over time; and 

 Investment Strategy, stating the parameters on how investments 
are to be managed. 

 

b. Mid-Year Treasury Management Report, which updates members on 
treasury activities during the financial year and provides for revisions to 
the Treasury Strategy and indicators as necessary. 

 

Page 32



c. Annual Treasury Report, which provides the outturn for the previous 
financial year, summarises the treasury activity for that year and 
includes a full listing of actual prudential indictors. 

2.2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement contained in this Appendix 
addresses the first of these requirements. 

 
2.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 

scrutinising the treasury function prior to reports being formally approved 
at Council. 

 
2.4. The respective roles & responsibilities of the Council, its Audit & 

Regulatory Committee and the Section 151 Officer are noted in Annex 2. 
 

2.5. Capital Strategy – In December 2017, CIPFA issued revised Prudential 
and Treasury Management Codes. As from 2019/20, all local authorities 
will be required to prepare an additional report, a Capital Strategy report, 
which is intended to provide the following: 

 A high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services; 

 An overview of how the associated risk is managed; and 

 The implications for future sustainability. 
 
2.6. The Capital Strategy will include capital expenditure, investments and 

liabilities and treasury management in sufficient detail to allow all 
members to understand how stewardship, value for money, prudence and 
affordability will be secured. Annex 3 includes a statement relating to 
management practices for non-treasury investments as part of the new 
requirements. 
 

2.7. Many of these requirements are already met through the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and the Medium Term Financial Plan, 
however these will be reviewed to be expanded where required to be in 
place from 2019/20. 

 
3. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19 
 
3.1. The 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises the 

following principal elements: 
 

Capital Programme  

(section 6) 

Capital plans and the prudential indicators 

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy 

Treasury Management  

(section 7) 

 

Current treasury position 

Treasury indicators  

Prospects for interest rates  

The borrowing strategy 

Page 33



The Annual  

Investment Strategy 

(section 8) 

Investment policy 

Creditworthiness policy 

Investment income 

 
3.2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement meets the requirements of 

the Local Government Act 2003, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code, Communities and Local 
Government (CLG) MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and Communities and CLG Investment guidance. 

 
4. Training 
 
4.1. The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (the Chief Finance 

Officer) to ensure that Members and Officers with responsibility for 
treasury management receive adequate training. Training is particularly 
important for the Members who are responsible for the scrutiny of the 
Council’s treasury management. Training was provided for new Members 
of the Audit Committee in July 2015.   
 

4.2. Any training requirements arising from skills assessments completed by 
Members of the Audit Committee will be incorporated into a training plan – 
including any treasury management training needs. 

 
5. Treasury Management Consultants 
 
5.1. The Council has appointed Link Asset Services: Treasury solutions 

(formerly Capita Asset Services) as its external treasury management 
advisor - providing the Council with access to specialist skills and 
resources.  

 
5.2. The Council recognises that the responsibility for treasury management 

decisions remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that 
undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers. 

 
5.3. It also recognises that there is a value in employing external providers of 

treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist 
skills and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of appointment 
of treasury advisors and the methods by which their value will be 
assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular 
review.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



6. The Capital Programme & Prudential Indicators  
 
 Capital Expenditure 

 
6.1. The capital expenditure prudential indicator comprises a summary of the 

Council’s capital programme, which is a key driver of treasury 
management activity. 

 
6.2. The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 

how these plans are to be financed. Any shortfall of resources results in a 
funding borrowing need: 

 

 
2016/17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Estimate 

(REVISED) 
2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Capital 
Expenditure: 

5,091,000 8,323,000 10,844,550 7,741,000 5,207,000 6,889,000 

   General Fund 1,804,000 4,176,000 6,485,070 3,805,000 1,271,000 2,953,000 

   Housing Revenue 
   Account 

3,287,000 4,147,000 4,359,480 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 

Financed by:       

Capital Receipts 344,000 531,000 1,108,000 848,000 850,000 750,000 

Capital Grants 815,000 509,000 483,000 421,000 421,000 421,000 

Capital Reserves 2,057,000 2,099,000 2,486,710 2,099,000 2,099,000 2,099,000 

HRA Revenue 
Contribution 

909,000 1,659,000 1,953,480 1,776,000 1,837,000 1,837,000 

Net Financing 
Need for Year 

966,000 3,525,000 4,813,360 2,597,000 0 1,782,000 

  
6.3 The revisions made to the 2018/19 capital programme above relate to 

the proposed purchase of refuse vehicles.  An options appraisal has 
been undertaken to compare various methods of financing i.e. 
leasing, contract hire, outright purchase.  The most cost effective 
method based on this appraisal is outright purchase.  Therefore the 
capital programme has been amended accordingly (as detailed in the 
report ‘Alliance Environment Services – Financing of Vehicle Fleet to 
Council on 3rd May 2018). 

  
6.4 The forecast capital expenditure is based on indicative purchase 

costs and could be lower when procurement takes place.  However, 
in order to illustrate the potential financing implications these figures 
have been used in the analysis set out below:        

 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

Vehicle Purchases 

General Fund HRA 

 £ £ 
Capital Expenditure   
New Vehicles 2,159,360   -  
SFS Buy-out 387,710   208,481  

 
2,547,070   208,481  

Funding      
General Fund Balances (387,710) -  
HRA Balances - (208,481) 
Capital Reserves / Receipts* (308,476) - 
External Borrowing (1,850,884) - 

 
(2,547,070) (208,481) 

    *Subject to availability – capital receipts previously to be applied to other capital programme projects, but 
would be re-designated to the purchase of vehicles on the basis the useful life is relatively short-term 

 
6.5 The additional capital requirements above have been included in 

table 6.2 
  

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 
 
6.6 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR). The CFR is the total outstanding capital expenditure which 

has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. This is 
essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  

 
6.7 The CFR increases each time the Council procures capital expenditure that it 

does not immediately pay for (i.e. the CFR increases when its expenditure is 
financed through borrowing). 
 

6.8 Local authorities are required each year to set aside some of their revenues as 
provision for debt repayment. This is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP). The CFR is reduced each year by MRP. Each year’s borrowing need is 
divided by the life of the assets for which borrowing was undertaken, resulting in 
an annual charge to revenue, and reduction in the Council’s CFR. 
 

6.9 The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases). Whilst 
these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council's borrowing requirement, 
these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not 
required to separately borrow for these schemes. The Council had £410,000 of 
such schemes within the CFR at 1st April 2017. 
 

6.10 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement is shown in the table below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
2016/17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Estimate 

(REVISED)

2018/19 
Estimate 

(REVISED) 

2019/20 
Estimate 

(REVISED) 

2020/21 
Estimate 

(REVISED)

2021/22 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Capital Financing Requirement        

    CFR – non housing 21,675,000 24,364,000 28,306,360 29,755,000 28,603,000 29,321,000 

    CFR – housing 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,859,000 53,859,000 52,859,000 51,859,000 

 78,783,000 80,223,000 83,165,360 83,614,000 81,462,000 81,180,000 

Movement in CFR (1,138,000) 1,440,000 2,942,360 448,640 (2,152,000) (282,000) 

Represented by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Net financing need for the year 966,000 3,525,000 4,813,360 2,597,000 0 1,782,000 

Less Minimum Revenue 
Provision  

(2,104,000) (2,085,000) (1,871,000) (2,148,000) (2,152,000) (2,064,000) 

Movement in CFR (1,138,000) 1,440,000 2,942,360 449,000 (2,152,000) (282,000) 

 
6.11 The CFR has now increased by £2,159,000 (compared to the original 

TM Strategy) due to the proposed purchase of refuse freighters. 
 
 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 

 
6.3. The Council is required each year to set aside some of its revenues as 

provision for debt repayment. This essentially allows to Council to “pay off” 
an element of the Capital Financing Requirement annually through a 
revenue charge known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  

 
6.4. The MRP was previously defined by statute with regulations providing for 

MRP as a 4% charge in respect of the amount of the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR). Under current regulations the rules have been 
replaced with a general duty for a local authority to make an MRP charge 
to revenue which it considers to be prudent.  The regulation does not itself 
define “prudent provision”. However, guidance has been issued specifying 
methods for MRP calculation which the Secretary of State considers to be 
prudent thereby effectively determining prudent provision. 

 
6.5. The Department of Communities and Local Government regulations 

require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in advance of each 
year. It is recommended that the Council apply MRP to capital expenditure 
funded by borrowing under the ‘Asset Life Method’: which calculates the 
MRP charge based on the estimated life of the asset for which the 
borrowing is undertaken.  

Page 37



 
6.6. MRP applied to the HRA capital financial requirement is on a voluntary 

basis.  The Council currently applies Minimum Revenue Provision to 
borrowing related to the 2011/12 HRA Reform settlement payment over 
the period of the HRA business plan (30 years). For each year from 
2018/19 to 2021/22 this is expected to be £1million per annum (reduced 
from current £1.2million per annum) with the option to apply any surpluses 
on the HRA account as an additional MRP. This remains under review as 
part of the HRA Financial Improvement Plan. 

 
 Use of the Council’s Resources and Investment Position 

 
6.7. The Council builds up capital and revenue reserves as necessary for 

future application. The application of these resources to either finance 
capital expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year 
from new sources (for example, asset sales, revenue surpluses). 
Reserves are invested, pending application, to earn a return which 
supplements the revenue budget.  

 
6.8. An estimate of the amount available at year end for investment is shown in 

the table below: 
 

 
2016/17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
General Fund 
Reserves 

6,129,000 6,774,000 4,967,000 4,315,000 4,502,000 4,805,000 

Housing Revenue 
Account 

11,251,000 12,266,000 12,442,000 12,838,000 13,297,000 13,795,000 

Total core funds 17,380,000 19,040,000 17,409,000 17,153,000 17,799,000 18,600,000 

Working capital * (524,000) - - - - - 

(Under)/over 
borrowing 

(6,547,000) (7,112,000) (4,900,000) (3,094,000) (1,253,000) (4,957,000) 

Expected 
investments 

10,309,000 11,928,000 12,509,000 14,059,000 16,546,000 13,643,000 

* Shown as ‘0’ for estimation purposes as dependent on the value of creditors/debtors at year end  

 
6.9 There would be a slight change to the core funds available for 

investment as a result of the proposed utilisation of reserves to fund 
the purchase of new refuse vehicles/buy-out of existing fleet 
vehicles.  This would have an impact on investment income, which 
has been included in the overall assessment of the financial impact – 
there is no change proposed to the 2018/19 budget as approved in 
February 2018.  The above figures are subject to change based on 
the outturn position for 2017/18.   

 
 

Page 38



 Affordability Prudential Indicators 
 

6.9. The previous sections outline the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 
funding requirements. This section assesses the affordability of capital 
investment plans and the impact on the Council’s overall finances.  

 

 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 
 
6.10. This indicator calculates the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of 

investment income) as a percentage of the Council’s net revenue stream 
(council tax/business rates receipts - General Fund; rental income - HRA). 

 

 
2016/17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

General Fund* 15% 15% 20% 18% 17% 16% 

HRA** 15% 14% 13% 12% 12% 11% 

*no change applied to the general fund indicators – assumed finance lease principal/interest 
will be replaced by borrowing costs/loss of interest                                                                                               
**includes the annual voluntary MRP charge   

HRA debt per dwelling 

6.11. The indicator in the table below shows the level of HRA debt per dwelling: 
 

 
2016/17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

HRA debt (£) 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,859,000 53,859,000 52,859,000 51,859,000 

HRA dwellings (no. 
estimated) 

3,991 3,949 3,929 3,909 3,889 3,869 

Debt per dwelling (£) 14,309 14,145 13,963 13,778 13,592 13,404 

 
Interest payable & interest receivable 

 

6.12. Given the capital projections above, interest payable & interest receivable 
budgets for the next four years are forecast as follows: 

 

 
2018/19 

Estimate 
2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

Borrowing Costs 
(General Fund) 

£1,694,500 £1,827,150 £1,965,230 £1,993,640 

Borrowing Costs (HRA) £1,964,211 £1,883,812 £1,880,740 £1,892,176 

Investment Income (£139,940) (£206,060) (£312,810) (£371,400) 

*no change applied to the investment income/borrowing budgets – it is likely that there will be some 
realignment made during the year/in preparation for the 2019/20 budget in relation to the reduction in 
finance lease principal/interest and increase in borrowing costs/loss of investment income                                                                                                

Page 39



 

7. Treasury Management  
 
7.1. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 

organised so that sufficient cash is available to service its plans. This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans 
require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. This strategy 
covers the relevant treasury indicators and the current and projected debt 
and investment positions. 

 
 Current Debt Position 
 
7.2. The Council’s debt position at 31st March 2017 and its debt forecasts 

going forward are summarised below. The table shows the actual external 
debt against the underlying borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement) highlighting any under or over borrowing. 

 

 
March 17 

Actual 
£ 

March 18 
Estimate 

£ 

REVISED 
March 19 
Estimate 

£ 

REVISED 
March 20 
Estimate  

£ 

REVISED 
March 21 
Estimate  

£ 

REVISED 
March 22 
Estimate  

£ 

External Borrowing 71,825,000 72,825,000 78,084,000 80,684,000 80,684,000 76,936,000 

Other long-term liabilities 
(Finance Leases) 

411,000 286,000 - - -  

Gross Debt at 31st 
March 

72,236,000 73,111,000 78,084,360 80,684,000 80,684,000 76,936,000 

Change in Debt position (9,894,000) 875,000 4,973,360 2,599,640 - (3,748,000) 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

78,783,000 80,223,000 83,165,360 83,614,000 81,462,000 81,180,000 

(Under) / over borrowing (6,547,000) (7,112,000) (5,081,000) (2,930,000) (778,000) (4,244,000) 

 

7.3. The table above has been updated to include the additional 
borrowing requirement of £2,159,000 as a result of the proposed 
purchase of refuse vehicles. 
  

7.4. The Council is required to ensure that its Gross Debt does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 
the current year and the following two financial years. This allows some 
flexibility for borrowing in advance of need for future years, but ensures 
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes. 
 

7.5. The Council is complying with this indicator in the current year and does 
not envisage difficulty in complying over the life of the Medium Term 
Financial Plan. This view takes into account current and future proposals 
with regard to the capital programme. 

Page 40



Treasury Indicators - Limits to Borrowing Activity 
 
7.6. The Council sets limits to ensure that the revenue consequences of the 

capital programme on external borrowing remain affordable. 
 
Operational Boundary 

 
7.7. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to 

exceed. This represents the Capital Financing Requirement plus an 
additional allowance to cover short-term liquidity requirements. 

Operational boundary 
2017/18 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2018/19 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2019/20 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2020/21 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2021/22 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

80,223,000 83,165,000 83,614,000 81,462,000 81,180,000 

Allowance for borrowing to 
cover short-term cash flow* 

4,440,000 4,618,000 4,803,000 4,995,000 5,195,000 

Total Gross Debt 84,663,000 87,783,000 88,417,000 86,457,000 86,375,000 

* Amount required in short-term to cover precepts (the highest cash outflow)  
 
 

Authorised Limit for External Debt 
 
7.8. This indicator is the statutory limit set by the Council under Section 3 (1) of 

the Local Government Act 2003 beyond which external debt is prohibited. 
This limit needs to be set or revised by full Council: 

 

Authorised limit 
2017/18 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2018/19 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2019/20 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2020/21 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2021/22 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

Operational Boundary 84,663,000 87,783,000 88,417,000 86,457,000 86,375,000 

‘Headroom’ 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 

Total Gross Debt 87,163,000 90,283,000 90,917,000 88,957,000 88,875,000 

 

HRA Debt Limits 
 

7.9. The Council is subject to HRA Debt Limits under the HRA self-financing 
regime: 

HRA Debt Limit 
2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

HRA Debt Cap  68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 

HRA CFR 55,859,000 54,859,000 53,859,000 52,859,000 51,859,000 

HRA Headroom* 12,374,000 13,374,000 14,374,000 15,374,000 16,374,000 

*subject to the stock condition survey information 

Page 41



 
Prospects for Interest Rates 

 
7.10. The table in Annex 4, provided by Link, draws together a number of 

current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and borrowing rates. The 
table below summarises Link’s view on average interest rates:  

 

 
 
7.11. The expectation from Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) forward 

guidance is that Bank Rate will be increased only twice more by 0.25% by 
2020 to reach 1.00%. Link forecasts that there will be 0.25% increases in 
November 2018, November 2019 and again in August 2020. 
 

7.12. The overall longer run trend is for PWLB borrowing rates to rise, albeit 
gently, though these can be subject to exceptional levels of volatility from 
time to time due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis and emerging 
market developments. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains 
difficult with so many external influences weighing on the UK. 
 

7.13. The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is probably to 
the downside, particularly with the current level of uncertainty over the 
final terms of Brexit. Risks include: 

 Bank of England Bank Rate increases happen too quickly causing UK 
economic growth and increases in inflation to be weaker than currently 
anticipated. 

 The outcome of various elections throughout Europe. 

 Resurgence of Eurozone sovereign debt crisis. 

 Geopolitical risks in North Korea, Europe and the Middle East. 
 
 Borrowing Strategy 
 
7.14. The majority of the Council’s capital financing requirement is currently fully 

funded in the majority by external borrowing and finance lease 
arrangements and maintains a small under-borrowed position. 

 
7.15. As highlighted above, the Council has an estimated total Net Financing 

Requirement of £9,192,360 for the four years ending March 2022, which is 
mostly offset by Minimum Revenue Provision of £8,234,000 as shown in 
the table below. 

 

Page 42



 
REVISED 
2018/19 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2019/20 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2020/21 
Estimate 

REVISED 
2021/22 
Estimate 

Total 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

Net financing need  4,813,360 2,597,000 0 1,782,000 9,192,360 

Minimum Revenue Provision (1,871,000) (2,148,000) (2,152,000) (2,063,000) (8,234,000) 

 2,942,360 449,000 (2,152,000) (281,000) (958,360) 

 
7.16. The strategy assumes there will be some ‘new’ borrowing during 2018/19 

and 2019/20 to support the net financing need occurring in those years. 
There is also £5million of existing long term debt maturing during 2018/19, 
which the strategy anticipates will be partially refinanced during the year. 
The table at 7.2 shows that the Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’ position 
for the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

7.17. The capital financing requirement will be closely monitored in order to 
make a decision on refinancing prior to maturity.  Interest rate forecasts 
will also be monitored to identify any opportunities to refinance maturing 
debt in advance to reduce interest charges in the long-term. 

 
Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need  

 
7.18. The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its need purely to 

profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. 
 
7.19. The Council however may consider borrowing in advance to protect it from 

higher borrowing costs within approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates to finance new capital expenditure or refinance existing loans. 
This will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds. 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to 
prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year reporting 
mechanism. 
 
Debt Rescheduling 

 
7.20. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as 

to amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter 
the degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing 
the risk. The treasury team, supported by the Council’s treasury advisors, 
will monitor prospects for debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial 
benefit to the Council. 

 
 

Page 43



 
Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

 
7.21. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed 

rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower 
limits. The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indictors and 
limits: 

 

Maturity Structure of borrowing* 2018/19 (fixed interest rates) 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 30% 
% 12 months to 2 years 0% 30% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 40% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 60% 

10 years and above 0% 90% 
*external debt only (excludes finance leases) 
 

Maturity Structure of borrowing* 2018/19 (variable interest rates) 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 
% 12 months to 2 years 0% 50% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 0% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 0% 

10 years and above 0% 0% 
*external debt only (excludes finance leases) 

 
   Control of Interest Rate Exposure 

 
7.22. The Council reviews and manages the interest rate exposure of both 

borrowing and investments through the borrowing and investment 
strategies included in this document. Officers will monitor the balance 
between variable and fixed interest rates to ensure the Council is not 
exposed to adverse fluctuations in fixed or variable interest rate 
movements. 

 
8. Annual Investment Strategy 

 
Investment Policy 

 
8.1. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on 

Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral 
Guidance Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”). 

 
8.2. The Council’s principal investment priorities are the security of capital and 

the liquidity of its investments. In addition to this, the Council will aim to 
achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with proper 
levels of security and liquidity.  

Page 44



 
8.3. To minimise the risk to its investments, the Council applies minimum 

acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy 
conterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the 
Short Term and Long Term ratings. 
 

8.4. Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is 
important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a 
micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political 
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take 
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve 
this consideration, the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a 
monitor on market pricing such as ‘credit default swaps’ and overlay that 
information on top of the credit ratings. 

 
8.5. The investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are 

listed in Annex 5 under the headings, ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ 
Investments.  

 
8.6. Counterparty limits will be set as part of the Treasury Strategy and 

maintained as part of the Council’s treasury management practices. 
 
8.7. The Council will report on its investment activity in its Annual Treasury 

Report at the end of the financial year.  
 

8.8. Under the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II) 
implemented on 3 January 2018, the Council has opted-up to Elective 
Professional status with applicable counterparties to allow the Council to 
continue to deal with Money Market Funds and Certificates of Deposit and 
be treated as a Professional client. 
 
Creditworthiness Policy 

 
8.9. This Council employs the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset 

Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach 
utilising credit ratings from three main credit rating agencies – Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are 
supplemented with the following overlays: 

 

 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely 
changes in credit ratings; and 

 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most 
creditworthy countries. 

 

Page 45



8.10. Credit watches and outlooks are issued by the ratings agencies. ‘Credit 
watches’ are considered short-term actions, whereas ‘outlooks’ are 
considered over a longer term time horizon. Link includes the release of a 
negative or positive watch/outlook in its creditworthiness analysis. 

 
8.11. A ‘Credit Default Swap’ is a contract between two counterparties in which 

the buyer of the contract makes quarterly payments to the seller of the 
contract in exchange for a payoff if there is a credit event of the reference 
entity. The contract essentially gives protection or ‘insurance’. Therefore, 
CDS spreads provide perceived market sentiment regarding the credit 
quality of an institution and are also used in the creditworthiness analysis 
to determine the durational band of investment with a financial institution.  

 
8.12. Link’s creditworthiness model combines credit ratings, credit watches and 

outlooks in a weighted scoring system, with an overlay of CDS spreads, to 
produce a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are then used to 
determine the duration for investments.  

 
8.13. Only counterparties that fall within a ‘durational band’ will be included on 

the Council’s lending list. In conjunction with the recommended durational 
limits, the Council has assigned corresponding investment limits to each 
banding. The limits have been set separately for UK banks and 
International banks. 

 
UK Banks  

Category 
Principal 

Limit 
Maximum 

Length 
Portfolio (% of 

highest balance**) 

Yellow* £6.0m Up to 5 years 20% 

Purple £6.0m Up to 2 years 20% 

Orange £5.4m Up to 1 year 18% 

Red £4.5m Up to 6 months 15% 

Green £3.9m Up to 100 days 13% 

No Colour - Not to be used - 
* UK Government debt instruments 
**assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000 
 

International Banks 

Category 
Principal 

Limit 
Maximum 

Length 
Portfolio (% of 

highest balance*) 

Purple £4.5m Up to 2 years 15% 

Orange £3.6m Up to 1 year 12% 

Red £3.0m Up to 6 months 10% 

Green £2.4m Up to100 days 8% 

No Colour - Not to be used - 
* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000  

Page 46



 
8.14. The Council’s lending list includes part- and fully-Nationalised UK banks, 

which have been assigned the ‘blue’ category as per Link’s 
creditworthiness matrix. This category has been allocated a longer 
durational period and higher investment limit since it has strong 
Government support. The table below assigns investment limits: 

 

Category 
Principal 

Limit 
Maximum 

Length 
Portfolio (% of 

highest balance*) 

Blue £6.0m Up to 1 year 20% 

NatWest (the Council’s 
main bank account)  

£9.0m Up to 1 year 30% 

* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000  
 

8.15. The Council is alerted to changes in ratings and market movements 
through its use of the Link creditworthiness service. If a downgrade results 
in the counterparty no longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, it will 
no longer be used for new investments. All ratings will be monitored prior 
to any new investments being placed.  
 
Group Limits 

 

8.16. To reduce its risk further the Council has set a group limit for fixed term 
deposits in institutions with the same parent. The group limit will increase 
the portfolio percentage of the colour band the institution it is rated in at 
the time by a further 50% where at least the additional amount is held in 
an instant access account: 

 

Category 
Portfolio (% 
of highest 
balance*) 

Individual 
Principal 

Limit 

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50% 

Group 
Principal Limit 

Blue 20% £6.0m 30% £9.0m 

Purple 20% £6.0m 30% £9.0m 

Orange 18% £5.4m 27% £8.1m 

Red 15% £4.5m 23% £6.9m 

Green 13% £3.9m 20% £6.0m 
* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000  
 
Money Market Funds 

 
8.17. The Council has access to several Money Market Funds (MMF) - all of 

which are ‘AAA’ rated. A ‘Money Market Fund’ is a pooled vehicle 
investing in a number of investment instruments with varying maturity 
periods in a number of different countries. Money Market Funds provide 
an alternative option for the Council when placing short-term funds and 
provide for diversification of the investment portfolio. 

 
 

Page 47



8.18. The Council has set investment limits in Money Market Funds as follows: 
 

 
Principal 

Limit 
Maximum 

Length 
Portfolio (% of 

highest balance*) 

Individual MMF £5.4m Up to 1 year 18% 

Total MMF investments** £6.9m Up to 1 year 23% 
* assumes highest balance in 2018/19 is £30,000,000  
** maximum held in MMF’s at any one time 
 

Country Limits 
 

8.19.    A sovereign credit rating is the credit rating of a sovereign entity i.e. a 
country. The highest sovereign rating awarded is ‘AAA’. The evolving 
regulatory environment, in tandem with the rating agencies’ new 
methodologies, means that sovereign ratings are now of lesser 
importance in the assessment process and the new regulatory 
environment is attempting to break the link between sovereign support 
and domestic financial institutions. 
 

8.20. While the Council understands the changes that have taken place, it will 
continue to use sovereign ratings of individual counties in addition to credit 
ratings when making investment decisions. When investing with 
institutions outside the UK, only banks and building societies located in 
countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be used. This is in 
relation to the fact that the underlying domestic and, where appropriate, 
international economic and wider political and social background will still 
have an influence on the ratings of a financial institution. There are 
currently 10 ‘AAA’ rated countries approved for investments, as follows, 
this list will be updated during the year should any sovereign ratings 
change: 

 
 Investment income 
 
8.21. The Council’s in-house managed funds are derived from a core balance 

available for capital and revenue funding and day-to-day cash flows. At 
31st March 2017 the core balances available for investment were 
£17,380,000. Core balances are available for investment in line with the 
profile of capital expenditure and requirements of the revenue budget. 
Investments are therefore made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for interest rates. 

 
 
 

Australia Canada Denmark Germany Luxembourg 

Netherlands Norway Singapore Sweden Switzerland 

Page 48



 
 Investment Return Expectations 
 
8.22. Bank Rate is forecast to stay flat at 0.50% until quarter 4 2018 and not to 

rise above 1.25% by quarter 1 2021. Bank Rate forecasts for financial 
year ends (March) are: 

 March 2018  0.50% 

 March 2019  0.75% 

 March 2020  1.00% 

 March 2021 1.25% 

 
8.23. For 2018/19 the Council has budgeted for an average investment return of 

0.66%. The average rates assumed on new investments is as follows:  

 Fixed Term Investments (3 month to 1 year) 0.72% 

 Instant Access Business Accounts and short-term fixed 
deposits 0.58%. 

 
8.24. The 2018/19 income budget is therefore forecast to be £139,940. 

 
Long-term Investments (greater than 1 year) 

 
8.25. When placing long-term investments with counterparties, the Council’s 

liquidity requirements, availability of funds and counterparty eligibility need 
to be taken into consideration. The table below sets the limit on the total 
principal funds that may be invested for greater than 364 & 365 days. 

 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 & 365 days 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Principal sums invested > 364 &365 
days 

£4,000,000 £4,000,000 £4,000,000 £4,000,000 

 

Page 49



ANNEX 1  
 

Treasury Management Policy Statement 
 
In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, High 
Peak Borough Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury 
management activities as follows: 
 
1. The Council defines its treasury management activities as: “The 

management of the authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
2. The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control 

of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury 
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and 
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 
implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments entered 
into to manage these risks. 

 
3. The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will 

provide support towards the achievement of its business and service 
objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for 
money in treasury management, and to employing suitable 
comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context 
of effective risk management. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



ANNEX 2 

 

Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
 

(i) Full Council 

 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities; 

 approval of annual strategy. 

 

(ii) Audit & Regulatory Committee 

 approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices; 

 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body; 

 budget consideration and approval; 

 approval of the division of responsibilities; 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations; 

 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms 
of appointment. 

 

The treasury management role of the section 151 (responsible) officer 

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

 submitting budgets and budget variations; 

 receiving and reviewing management information reports; 

 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and 
the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 

 recommending the appointment of external service providers.  

  

Page 51



ANNEX 3 
Management Practices for Non-Treasury Investments  
 
This Council recognises that investment in other financial assets and property 
primarily for financial return, taken for non-treasury management purposes, 
requires careful investment management. Such activity includes loans supporting 
service outcomes, investments in subsidiaries, and investment property 
portfolios. 
 
This Council will ensure that all the Council’s investments are covered in the 
capital strategy (when implemented from 2019/20), investment strategy or 
equivalent, and will set out, where relevant, the organisation’s risk appetite and 
specific policies and arrangements for non-treasury investments. It will be 
recognised that the risk appetite for these activities may differ from that for 
treasury management. 
 
The Council will maintain a schedule setting out a summary of existing material 
investments, subsidiaries, joint venture and liabilities including financial 
guarantees and the organisation’s risk exposure. 

Page 52



ANNEX 4 

UK Interest Rate Forecast (Link) 

 
  

Page 53



ANNEX 5 
Specified and Non-Specified Investments 
 

Specified Investments 
 
All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum 
of 1 year*, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 
 

Investment Instrument* Minimum ‘High’ Credit Criteria Investment Limit** 

Debt Management Agency 
Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

n/a n/a 

Term deposits – local 
authorities  

n/a n/a 

Bridging Loans (Community 
Groups within HPBC) 

Decision made on individual basis 
& subject to presentation of 
required documents 

£100,000 (total 
outstanding for all 
loans at any one time) 

UK Government Gilts and 
Treasury Bills 

UK Sovereign Rating n/a 

Certificates of deposits or 
corporate bonds with banks 
and building societies 

 Based on Link Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN 
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK) 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies  

 Based on Link Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN 
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK) 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

UK (Part-)Nationalised Banks 
 Based on Link Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – BLUE 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

UK Instant Access Accounts 
 Based on Link Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

Money Market Funds (MMF) AAA rated 
As per individual / 
group lending limits 

 
* If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not exceed 
one year in aggregate  
 
** must conform to both institution and group limits set 

 

Page 54



Non-specified Investments 
 

Non-specified investment instruments are assumed to take on greater risk and 
should therefore be subject to greater scrutiny. They include investments that are 
for a period of more than one year and instruments that the Council has very 
limited experience and expertise in dealing with. 
 

A maximum of £12,000,000 (40% of the projected highest balance) will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investments. 
 

Non-specified Investments Minimum Credit Criteria 

Investment 
Limit / Max. % 

of total 
investments 

Max. maturity period 

Term deposits – UK government 
(maturities in excess of 1 year) 

n/a 
£4,000,000  
(> 364&365 day 
limit) 

5 years 

Term deposits – other LAs / Parish 
Councils (maturities in excess of a 
year) 

n/a 
£4,000,000  
(> 364&365 day 
limit) 

To be determined on an 
individual case basis, 
inclusive of options for the 
Council to review terms at 
specified periods of time (no 
greater than 5 years) 

Term & Callable deposits – banks 
and building societies (maturities in 
excess of 1 year) 

Based on Link 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Lowest Band – PURPLE 
Sovereignty Rating -AAA 

£4,000,000  
(> 364&365 day 
limit) 

2 years 

Collateralised Deposit 

Based on Link 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Band – YELLOW 
Sovereignty Rating -AAA 

£6,000,000            
(as per Yellow 
limit) 

5 years 

Commercial Paper 

Based on Link 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Lowest Band – GREEN 
Sovereignty Rating -AAA 

£3,000,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

1 year 

UK Government Gilts – all maturities Long term AAA 
£3.000,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks  - all maturities 

Long term AAA 
£3,000,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Bonds issued by a financial institution 
which is guaranteed by the UK 
government – all maturities 

Long term AAA 
£3,000,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. other than 
the UK govt) – all maturities 

Long Term AAA 
£3,000,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Treasury Bills – all maturities n/a 
£4,500,000 
(15% of highest 
balance) 

1 year 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs): 

Non-specified Investments Minimum Credit Criteria 
Investment  Limit/ 

Max. % of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

    1. Government Liquidity        
Funds – all maturities  

AAA rated 
£4,500,000 (15% of 

highest balance) 
2 years 

    2. Money Market Funds –   
all maturities 

AAA rated 
£6,000,000 (20% of 

highest balance) 
2 years 

    3. Enhanced cash funds –  
all maturities 

AAA rated 
£3,000,000 (10% of 

highest balance) 
2 years 

    4. Gilt Funds – all maturities AAA rated 
£3,000,000 (10% of 

highest balance) 
2 years 

 

Page 56



 

 

 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

2nd May 2018 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 This report seeks approval to make an amendment to the Council’s 

accounting policies. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the following change to the accounting policies is approved: 
 

The Property Plant and Equipment Policy has the following bullet point 
added to its componentisation section: 

 

 Where valuation of a componentised asset identifies a change in value of 
an individual component this will be applied to its carrying value.   

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Council accounts for its financial transactions according to a set of 

policies that follow statutory requirements and best practice. They are 
published as an integral part of the Authority’s annual statements and any 
amendments require approval by the Audit & Regulatory Committee. 

 
3.2 The amendment recommended in this report is primarily to provide 

clarification. 
 

TITLE:   Amendment to Accounting Policy – Property, 
Plant & Equipment 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:  Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Finance & Operational Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS:  Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
Stephen Robinson – Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Reporting) 

 

WARDS INVOLVED:   Non-specific 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 

3.3 The Property Plant and Equipment policy is recommended for amendment 
in relation to the following: 

 

 Componentisation: to confirm that where assets comprise two or more 
components any change in overall valuation will not simply be applied to 
the overall asset but assigned to its component parts in accordance with 
any split provided by the valuer. 

 
 
4. How this report links with Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 The preparation of the Statement of Accounts is dictated by legislation. As 

such it is not directly linked to a corporate priority, although the Council is 
firmly committed to the guiding principle of transparency and accountability in 
the stewardship of public funds.    

 
 
5. Options 
 
5.1 If the amendment is not approved the existing policies will continue to be 

applied. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)    
 None 
 
6.2 Workforce    
 None 
 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment 
 This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 

Diversity policies. 
 
6.4 Financial 
 This report relates to the statement of the Council’s accounts 
 
6.5 Legal 
 None 
 
6.6 Sustainability 
 None 
 
6.7 Internal and External Consultation:  
 None 
 
6.8 Risk Assessment:     
 Not applicable 

 

Page 58



 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
Background Papers Location Contact 

Accounting Policies Finance and Performance  
Moorlands House 

Claire Hazeldene 
Finance and Procurement Manager 
Tel:  (01538) 395400  Ext. 5466 
 

Stephen Robinson 
Principal Finance Officer (Financial Reporting) 
Tel: (01538) 395400 Ext. 4194 

 

Page 59



 

7 Background and Introduction 
 
7.1 Accounting policies set out the basis used to recognise, measure and disclose 

financial transactions and other events in the Council’s accounts. They are 
based on best practice and legislative requirements and are published 
annually in the Council’s Statement of Accounts.   

 
7.2 As these policies impact directly on the way that financial information is 

reported they are subject to member scrutiny and approval. 
 
7.3 While much of the substance of individual policies is dictated by statute 

individual local authorities have the scope to design them to fit their particular 
circumstances. 

 
7.4 A review of the Council’s existing accounting policies has identified an 

amendment that would confirm the status of an existing practice adopted 
when recording the change of value of assets that comprise more than one 
component.  

 
 
8 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 
 
8.1 The Council recognises property assets on its balance sheet in accordance 

with accounting best practice in regard to valuation, depreciation and 
impairment. This includes, where applicable, identifying the individual 
significant components of an asset. The Council’s PPE accounting policies 
include a section on componentisation that sets out both the values above 
which assets will be considered for splitting into components and thresholds 
below which individual components will not be identified. These policies are 
aimed at reducing the time and resources spent meeting accounting 
requirements without compromising the financial information reported. 

 
8.2 Asset values are reviewed annually as well as being subject, as a minimum, 

to a five-yearly professional valuation. These valuations form the basis of the 
carrying value of the assets in the Council’s balance sheet. Where an asset 
includes components the valuer provides a breakdown of any revised 
valuation by individual component. It is the custom and practice of the Council 
to use the breakdown provided to amend the carrying values of the 
component parts. 

 
8.3 It is however acknowledged that, in theory, the Council could chose to apply 

any change in value to the asset on a basis of its choice.  For the sake of 
clarity and consistency it is considered prudent to record the Authority’s 
customary approach within the accounting policies.   

  
8.4 It is proposed that the Council’s property, plant and equipment policy has the 

following bullet point added to its ‘Componentisation’ section: 
 

Page 60



 

 where valuation of a componentised asset identifies a change in 
value of an individual component this will be applied to its carrying 
value.   

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

2nd May 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 - Whistleblowing Policy 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 received the Royal Assent in July 

1998 and came into force on 2 July 1999. The Act gives protection to 
“whistleblowers” that raise concerns about serious fraud or malpractice at their 
place of work against victimisation or dismissal, provided they have acted in a 
responsible way in dealing with their concerns. In support of this, the Council 
actively promotes its Whistleblowing Policy to ensure all relevant parties are 
aware of it and of how and when to use it. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Committee note the activity outlined in this report, aimed at promoting 

the Whistleblowing Policy within High Peak Borough Council. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 High Peak Borough Council’s Whistleblowing Policy has been in place since 

2002 and has been periodically updated, the last time in May 2016. It allows 
all employees and contractors to report any concerns where the public interest 
is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, customers, staff or the 
Council itself. As such, it promotes and supports the requirements of the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 

 
3.2 HPBC reviews all of its policies on a regular basis to ensure they are fit for 

purpose and where appropriate, are continually improving. Previous actions 

TITLE:   Whistleblowing - Update 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
    Councillor for Finance & Operational Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



aimed at publicising the Whistleblowing Policy and improving the Council’s 
processes have helped to facilitate a strong culture of disclosure,  one that 
promotes the appropriate use of whistleblowing which has been confirmed by 
positive responses to previous staff surveys. 
 

3.3 Since the last policy update in May 2016, there has been one whistleblowing 
case reported. This issue was satisfactorily dealt with and resolved internally 
by line management. 
 

3.4 Further awareness raising initiatives will be scheduled to ensure 
Whistleblowing continues to be appropriately publicised. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 High Peak Borough Council aims to maintain a high performing and well 

motivated workforce. In support of this, the Council actively promotes its 
Whistleblowing Policy.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
It is essential that all employees are aware of the Whistleblowing Policy 
and how they can make use of it. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 
 

6.5 Legal 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 states that employees and 
contractors must be allowed to make ‘protected disclosures’ should 
they witness any malpractice or similar within the workplace. The 
Whistleblowing Policy enables them to do this. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 Internal and External Consultation 

Page 64



 
 

None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
None 
 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 1998 
 
Public Concern At Work 
Compliance Toolkit 2015 

Moorlands House John Leak 
Audit Services Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

Page 65

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1 High Peak Borough Council’s Whistleblowing Policy (Appendix 1) has been in 

place since 2002 and has been periodically updated, the last time in May 
2016. It allows all employees and contractors to report any concerns where 
the public interest is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, 
customers, staff or the Council itself. As such, it promotes and supports the 
requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 
 

7.2 High Peak Borough Council aims to maintain a high performing and well 
motivated workforce. In support of this, the Council actively promotes its 
Whistleblowing Policy to ensure all relevant parties are aware of it and how 
and when to use it. 

 
7.3 Previous actions aimed at publicising the Whistleblowing Policy and improving 

the Council’s processes have helped to facilitate a strong culture of disclosure, 
one that promotes the appropriate use of whistleblowing which has been 
confirmed by positive responses to previous staff surveys.  These actions 
have included: 

 

 The inclusion of the Whistleblowing Policy in the Induction Process for 
new members of staff; 

 

 Discussion of the 2016 policy and reporting arrangements at a meeting of 
the Joint Consultative Committee; 

 

 Articles in previous Alliance Newsletters and Alliance Online 
communications to raise staff awareness; 

 

 Whistleblowing awareness posters placed on noticeboards throughout the 
Council. 

 
7.4 An Alliance Whistleblowing Policy was approved by this Committee in May 

2016 to promote a consistent approach to disclosure of concerns. This Policy 
is based on best practice supplied by the whistleblowing charity and leading 
authority in the field ‘Public Concern At Work’, to whom the Council 
subscribes. It incorporates the latest legislative changes introduced by the 
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 with regard to the public interest 
test and good faith and vicarious liability and is therefore still fit for purpose. 
 

7.5 There has been one whistleblowing case reported since the last Policy update 
in May 2016. This issue was satisfactorily dealt with and resolved internally by 
line management. 
 

7.6 Further awareness raising initiatives will be scheduled to ensure 
Whistleblowing continues to be appropriately publicised. These will include: 
 

 A reminder article will be included in the Alliance Online for staff; 
 

 Practical tips will be given to all Managers and Supervisors to help them 
deal with any whistleblowing issues raised by their staff. 

Page 66



 1 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council & 
High Peak Borough Council 
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 
All of us at one time or another have a concern about what is happening at work. Usually these 
are easily resolved. However, when the concern feels serious because it is about a possible 
fraud, danger or malpractice that might affect others or the organisation itself, it can be 
difficult to know what to do. 
 
You may be worried about raising such a concern and may think it best to keep it to yourself, 
perhaps feeling it’s none of your business or that it’s only a suspicion. You may feel that raising 
the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, managers or to the organisation. You may decide to 
say something but find that you have spoken to the wrong person or raised the issue in the 
wrong way and are not sure what to do next. 
 
The Cabinet / Executive and Chief Executive of the Council are committed to running the 
organisation in the best way possible and to do so we need your help. We have introduced this 
policy to reassure you that it is safe and acceptable to speak up and to enable you to raise any 
concern you may have about malpractice at an early stage and in the right way. Rather than 
wait for proof, we would prefer you to raise the matter when it is still a concern.   
 
This policy promotes and supports the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 
It applies to all those who work for us; whether full-time or part-time, contractors, employed 
through an agency or as a volunteer. If you have a whistleblowing concern, please let us know.   
 
If something is troubling you which you think we should know about or look into, please use 
this policy. If, however, you wish to make a complaint about your employment or how you 
have been treated, please use the Council’s Grievance Policy or Bullying and Harassment Policy 
available on the Intranet or from your manager or Human Resources Business Partner. If you 
have a concern about financial misconduct or fraud, please see the Council’s Anti-Fraud & 
Corruption Policy. This Whistleblowing Policy is primarily for concerns where the public interest 
is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, customers, staff or the organisation itself. 
 
If in doubt - raise it! 
 

Page 67

http://smdcintranet/serviceforms/WhistleBlowing.asp


 2 

OUR ASSURANCES TO YOU 

 
Your safety 
 
The Cabinet / Executive and Chief Executive are committed to this policy. Provided you are 
raising a genuine concern, it does not matter if you are mistaken. Of course we do not extend 
this assurance to someone who maliciously raises a matter they know is untrue.   
 
If you raise a genuine concern under this policy, you will not be at risk of losing your job or 
suffering any form of reprisal as a result. We will not tolerate the harassment or victimisation 
of anyone raising a genuine concern and we consider it a disciplinary matter to victimise 
anyone who has raised a genuine concern. 
 
Your confidence 
 
With these assurances, we hope you will raise your concern openly. However, we recognise 
that there may be circumstances when you would prefer to speak to someone confidentially 
first. If this is the case, please say so at the outset. If you ask us not to disclose your identity, we 
will not do so without your consent unless required by law. You should understand that there 
may be times when we are unable to resolve a concern without revealing your identity, for 
example where your personal evidence is essential. In such cases, we will discuss with you 
whether and how the matter can best proceed. 
 
Please remember that if you do not tell us who you are (and therefore you are raising a 
concern anonymously) it will be much more difficult for us to look into the matter. We will not 
be able to protect your position or to give you feedback. Accordingly you should not assume 
we can provide the assurances we offer in the same way if you report a concern anonymously. 
 
If you are unsure about raising a concern you can get independent advice from Public Concern 
at Work (see contact details under Independent Advice). 
 
 

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN INTERNALLY 

 
Please remember that you do not need to have firm evidence of malpractice before raising a 
concern. However we do ask that you explain as fully as you can the information or 
circumstances that gave rise to your concern. 
 
Step one 
If you have a concern about malpractice, we hope you will feel able to raise it first with your 
manager, supervisor or team leader.  This may be done verbally or in writing.   
 
Step two 
If you feel unable to raise the matter with your manager, for whatever reason, please raise the 
matter with the Audit Manager 01538 395695 or e-mail 
whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 68

mailto:whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 3 

If you want to raise the matter confidentially, please say so at the outset so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
Step three 
If these channels have been followed and you still have concerns, or if you feel that the matter 
is so serious that you cannot discuss it with any of the above, please contact the Chief 
Executive or, if you feel the Chief Executive may be personally involved, the Leader of the 
Council.  
 
 

HOW WE WILL HANDLE THE MATTER 

 
We will acknowledge receipt of your concern within ten working days. We will assess it and 
consider what action may be appropriate.  This may involve an informal review, an internal 
inquiry or a more formal investigation.  We will tell you who will be handling the matter, how 
you can contact them, and what further assistance we may need from you.  If you ask, we will 
write to you summarising your concern and setting out how we propose to handle it and 
provide a timetable for feedback.  If we have misunderstood the concern or there is any 
information missing please let us know. 
 
When you raise the concern it will be helpful to know how you think the matter might best be 
resolved.  If you have any personal interest in the matter, we do ask that you tell us at the 
outset.  If we think your concern falls more properly within our Grievance, Bullying and 
Harassment or other relevant procedure, we will let you know. 
  
Whenever possible, we will give you feedback on the outcome of any investigation.  Please 
note, however, that we may not be able to tell you about the precise actions we take where 
this would infringe a duty of confidence we owe to another person. 
 
While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you might wish, 
we will strive to handle the matter fairly and properly.  By using this policy you will help us to 
achieve this. 
 
If at any stage you experience reprisal, harassment or victimisation for raising a genuine 
concern please contact a Human Resources Business Partner. 
 
 

INDEPENDENT ADVICE 

 
If you are unsure whether to use this policy or you want confidential advice at any stage, you 
may contact the independent charity Public Concern at Work on 020 7404 6609 or by email at 
helpline@pcaw.org.uk.  Their lawyers can talk you through your options and help you raise a 
concern about malpractice at work.   
 
You can also contact your union (where applicable) for advice. 
 
 
 

Page 69

mailto:helpline@pcaw.org.uk


 4 

EXTERNAL CONTACTS 

 
While we hope this policy gives you the reassurance you need to raise your concern internally 
with us, we recognise that there may be circumstances where you can properly report a 
concern to an outside body.   In fact, we would rather you raised a matter with the appropriate 
regulator – such as the Health & Safety Executive, External Auditor or the Police - than not at 
all.   Public Concern at Work (or, if applicable, your union) will be able to advise you on such an 
option if you wish.    
 
 

MONITORING / OVERSIGHT 

 
The Audit Committee is responsible for this policy and will review it periodically.  A record will 
be maintained of all concerns raised together with the outcomes (but in a form which does not 
endanger your confidentiality) and will be reported as necessary to this Committee. 
 
 

IF YOU ARE DISSATISFIED 

 
While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you would wish, 
we will always endeavour to try to handle the matter fairly and properly.  By following the 
guidelines contained in this policy, you will help us to achieve this. Nevertheless, if you are 
unhappy with the Council’s response to the issue you’ve raised, you may wish to contact one of 
the other bodies detailed in this policy.   
 
 

ELECTED COUNCILLORS 

 
If an elected Councillor wishes to report any suspicions of malpractice, they should raise their 
concerns with the Chief Executive or, if the elected Councillor feels the Chief Executive may be 
personally involved, with an Executive Director. If the elected Councillor feels it would not be 
appropriate to raise with an Executive Director, then the issue should be raised with the Audit 
Manager 01538 395695 or e-mail whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70

mailto:whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 

  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 

 
2nd May 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 - High Peak BC / Staffordshire Moorlands DC Internal Audit - Audit 
Plan 2018/19 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager should establish a risk based audit plan to 
determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
Council’s goals. The audit plan must be based on a documented risk 
assessment undertaken at least annually. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Committee approve the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 

2018/19. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards state that the Audit Plan must be 

based on a documented risk assessment undertaken at least annually and it 
needs to be flexible in response to changes in the Council’s business, risks, 
operations, programs, systems and controls. Furthermore, the Standard states 
that the Audit Manager must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans 
and resource requirements to senior management and the Audit Committee 
for review and approval. The Audit Manager must also communicate the 

TITLE:   Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2018/19 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
    Councillor for Finance & Operational  Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



 

  

impact of resource limitations. This report seeks to address these 
requirements. 

 
3.2 The annual audit plan for 2018/19 has been created and is attached as 

Appendix 1. This involved a review of the risk scores in accordance with the 
Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology to ensure that the 
most recent changes affecting risk are taken into account. The Internal Audit 
Plan is a joint Alliance plan designed to make the best use of Alliance 
resources and to reflect the nature of Council services. 

 
3.3 Should any amendments to the audit plan be necessary during the year, these 

will be reported to Councillors at future Audit & Regulatory Committee 
meetings. 

 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of 
financial and other resources to ensure value for money.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Approve the 2018/19 Audit Plan (Recommended). The Council will have an 

achievable risk based internal audit plan which is designed to provide 
assurance that the control environment is effective in achieving the Council’s 
objectives and is in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 
and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 

5.2 Do not approve the 2018/19 Audit Plan (Not Recommended). The Council will 
not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requirement 
to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 
 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 

Page 72



 

  

 
6.5 Legal 

None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
The annual audit plan has been prepared in accordance with the 
Internal Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology. 
 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

None N/A John Leak 
Audit Services Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 73

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 

  

7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1 The audit plan must be based on a documented risk assessment undertaken 

at least annually, in accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. However the audit plan needs to be flexible to be 
able to reflect the changing risks and priorities of the Council so the entire 
scope of audits will receive ongoing consideration and attention to ensure that 
appropriate audit coverage is achieved. 
 

7.2 The Audit Plan has been developed using a comprehensive risk assessment 
framework which is designed to assess all areas of the Council’s services and 
thereby examine and evaluate the whole system of internal controls (both 
financial and non-financial) established by management. This risk assessment 
allows the Audit Plan to be focused, concentrating resources on the areas of 
greatest need and where there will be the best use of audit resources. The 
work is designed to appraise and review : 

 

 the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both financial and 
operational; 

 the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, 
procedures, laws and regulations, i.e. rules established by the 
management of the Council, or externally; 

 the means of safeguarding assets; 

 the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are 
employed, and whether operations are being carried out as planned and 
objectives and goals are being met. 

 
7.3 The risk based planning methodology utilised to prepare the audit plan 

assesses each system on eight risk elements : 
 

 Monetary / financial value; 

 Volume of transactions; 

 System factors – stability / type of processing application / complexity of 
regulations and / or processing; 

 Managerial and control environment / previous assurance; 

 Incidence / risk of fraud; 

 Sensitivity; 

 Corporate risks; and 

 Time since previous audit. 
 

This approach is linked to a mapping exercise whereby corporate risks are 
mapped to the Audit Plan to ensure they are adequately considered during the 
audit lifecycle. 

 
7.4 The annual audit plan for 2018/19 has been created and is attached as 

Appendix 1. As the Internal Audit service is a joint resource across both 
Alliance Councils, and all Alliance services are joint, the most efficient method 
of auditing to take advantage of economies of scale is to undertake audits 
covering both Alliance Councils. However there will still be occasions when 
audits only cover one of the Alliance Councils and this is reflected within the 

Page 74



 

  

Audit Plan. The future audit approach to potential challenges to the internal 
control environment that may result from the ongoing development of services 
will need to be adapted as transformation progresses. 
 

7.5 It is planned to supplement the annual audit plan during 2018/19 with the 
purchase of a specialist ICT audit resource to focus on technical ICT risks. An 
initial needs assessment to facilitate the prioritisation of future ICT audits was 
undertaken in February / March 2018 and ICT audits arising from this 
assessment will be planned and undertaken during 2018/19 and future years 
utilising available budget(s).  

 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
HIGH PEAK BC / STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DC 

INTERNAL AUDIT – AUDIT PLAN 2018/19 
 

AUDIT SMDC HPBC ALLIANCE TOTAL 

Key Financial Systems     

Budgetary Control   10 10 

Capital Accounting   10 10 

Council Tax   15 15 

Creditor Payments   10 10 

Housing Benefits   20 20 

Housing Rents  15  15 

General Ledger   10 10 

Non-Domestic Rates   20 20 

Payroll   15 15 

Recovery   20 20 

Sundry Debtors   15 15 

Treasury Management   10 10 

VAT   10 10 

TOTAL – KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 0 15 165 180 

Areas identified within Corporate Risks     

AES Governance   20 20 

Assets & Facilities   15 15 

ICT-GDPR / Info Governance   10 10 

Housing Strategy   15 15 

Housing Stock Management  15  15 

Pollution   10 10 

TOTAL – CORPORATE RISKS 0 15 70 85 

Areas identified by Internal Audit     

Building Control   10 10 

Commercial Property   15 15 

Community Safety   10 10 

Customer Services   15 15 

Electoral Registration   10 10 

Enforcement   10 10 

Ethical & Corporate Governance   15 15 

Housing Agency & DFG Assurance   15 15 

Housing Repairs & Maintenance  15  15 

HR - Sickness & Time Management   15 15 

ICT -  Asset Management   10 10 

Leisure Contract Management   15 15 

Markets   20 20 

Media & Communications   10 10 

On-line Payment & Miscellaneous Income   15 15 

Pavilion Gardens  20  20 

Pest Control & Animal Welfare   10 10 

Risk Management   10 10 

Transparency   10 10 

TOTAL – AREAS IDENTIFIED BY IA 0 35 215 250 

     

TOTAL PLANNED DAYS 0 65 450 515 

 Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

2nd May 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 - Reports issued between 1st February 2018 and 30th April 2018 
Appendix 2 - Internal Audit 2017/18 Progress Information as at 30th April 2018 
Appendix 3 - 2016/17 Audit Recommendations Implementation 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this report. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise performance information for the 

Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 financial year. This includes a 
breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, the number and 
classification of recommendations made, agreed and where applicable, 
implemented by management. 

 
3.2 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 91% of 2017/18 

audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 

TITLE: 2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report February 
2018 to April 2018 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive  
    Councillor for Finance &  Operational Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 79

Agenda Item 10



 

  

deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal 
Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they 
will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted that it is the 
responsibility of relevant managers to implement agreed recommendations. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of 
financial and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None. 
 

6.5 Legal 
None. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None. 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None. 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
None. 
 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 
 

Page 80



 

  

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

None N/A John Leak 
Audit Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

Page 81

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 

  

7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 Introduction 
 
7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise performance information for 

the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 financial year. This 
includes a breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, the 
number and classification of recommendations made, agreed and 
where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual 

risk assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2017/18 was 
agreed by this Committee at the 18th May 2017 meeting. The Internal 
Audit service also carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a 
contingency is usually built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of 
internal control consultancy work and special investigations into 
suspected fraud and irregularity. 

 
7.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations 
 
7.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st February 

2018 to 30th April 2018 is shown in the table below. Further details of 
these audits outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are 
shown in Appendix 1. 

 
Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Chief Executive Emergency 
Planning / 
BCP 

0 1 15 Satisfactory 

Development 
Services 

Development 
Control S106 

0 2 5 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Sundry 
Debtors 

0 1 3 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Council Tax 0 2 5 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Creditor 
Payments 

0 1 6 Satisfactory 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 

Strategic 
Partnerships 

0 2 7 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Budgetary 
Control 

0 0 1 Substantial 

Page 82



 

  

 
7.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed 

during the financial year including the current status of audit 
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit 
recommendations have been agreed, and to date 91% of 2017/18 audit 
recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, 
Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted 
that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations. 

 
7.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit 

recommendation being allocated a risk, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s 
assessment of the internal control environment. These assurance 
opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The control 
levels are defined as follows: 

  
Control 
Level 

Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 
the objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the 
most part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in 
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a 
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error. 

 
7.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous 

financial year 2016/17 implemented to date. This information will keep 
Councillors informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year 
audit recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation 
of some previous year recommendations will fall into 2017/18 and 
beyond depending on when the audit was carried out so this appendix 
will show when those recommendations become due for 
implementation. In due course, all recommendations will fall due and it 
will be possible to clearly identify which recommendations have not 
been implemented. 

 
7.2.5 To date 96% of 2016/17 audit recommendations that are due have 

been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been 
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor 
such cases.  It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant 
Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 

Page 83



 

  

7.3 Audits In Progress 
 

7.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table 
below. 

 
Service Audit Status 

Legal & Election 
Services 

Freedom of 
Information 

Audit Complete. Management response. 

Housing & 
Benefits 

Carelink Audit Complete. Quality control stage. 

Environmental 
Services 

Licensing Audit in Progress. 

Regeneration Regeneration Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

NNDR Audit in Progress. 

Legal & Election 
Services 

Legal 
Services 

Audit in Progress. 

Customer 
Services 

Housing 
Strategy 

Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

General 
Ledger 

Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Payroll Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Recovery Audit in Progress. 

Customer 
Services 

Housing 
Benefits 

Audit in Progress. 

 
7.4 Progress against Audit Plan 

7.4.1 The 2017/18 financial year has seen steady progress against planned 
audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as 
detailed in 7.3 above will be completed soon. A satisfactory year end 
position will therefore be achieved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



 

  

7.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 
excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated: 

 

Summary Progress Information to 30th April 2018 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially 
completed 

68% 

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 24% 

Number of recommendations made (including unplanned 
work) 

182 

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers (including unplanned work) 

100% 

Percentage of recommendations implemented within 
agreed timescale (including unplanned work) 

91% 

 
7.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating 

controls exist or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency 
of the current system for the benefit of service delivery. 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st FEBRUARY 2018 & 
30th APRIL 2018 

 
 
Emergency Planning & Business Continuity 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 The Disaster Recovery Test Policy should 
be documented and appropriately approved 
and disaster recovery tests undertaken in 
accordance with the timescales specified in 
the Policy. 

 Regular Emergency Planning Compliance 
Group meetings are held to discuss issues 
and future actions. 

 One documented Emergency Plan 
throughout the Alliance. 

 A comprehensive procedure exists for the 
secure disposal of redundant media. 

 Excellent out-of-hours support offered by 
Derbyshire County Council (DCC). 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Risk Register     2  

Service Level Agreements     1  

Alliance Emergency Plan     1  

Documentation on Intranet     1  

On Call Rota / Overtime Payments     2  

Universal Contact List     1  

Emergency Planning Compliance Group 
Terms of Reference 

    1  

Emergency Planning Compliance Group 
Outstanding Actions 

    1  

Strategic Business Continuity Plan     1  

Disaster Recovery Test Policy   1    

Backup & Media Handling Policy     1  

Websites     1  

Flooding      1  

Northgate Contract     1  

Total   1  15  

 

Page 87



APPENDIX 1 

Section 106 Agreements 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 All Section 106 agreements should be fully 
and accurately recorded with an appropriate 
level of detail to ensure that effective 
monitoring can be undertaken. 

 All Section 106 agreements should be 
regularly reviewed to ensure that all 
applicable contributions are fully and 
promptly received. 

 The Section 106 Monitoring Group meets 
on a regular basis. 

 Appropriate action is taken to ensure that all 
contributions received are promptly 
allocated. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Roles and Responsibilities     1  

Register of Agreements   1    

Legal Agreements      2 

Monitoring of Agreements   1   2 

Total   2  1 4 

Page 88



APPENDIX 1 

Sundry Debtors 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 Payment for services provided by Pavilion 
Gardens should be obtained prior to the 
provision of goods and services in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rule 
D2.20. 

 Regular reconciliations (usually daily) are 
carried out to ensure that income is posted 
correctly within the key financial systems. 

 Suspense accounts are cleared on a 
regular basis. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Invoices   1  1  

Suspense Items      1 

IT Security     1  

Total   1  2 1 

Page 89



APPENDIX 1 

Council Tax 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A full review of system access should be 
undertaken to ensure that only relevant 
staff have appropriate access to the 
Council Tax system, and this should be 
kept up to date. 

 The discount & exemption review/evidence 
requirements schedule should be finalised, 
documented and implemented as soon as 
possible to ensure that all accounts in 
receipt of a discount/exemption are being 
reviewed regularly. 

 Weekly Valuation Office schedules are 
reconciled to the system promptly. 

 Payments are posted to customer accounts 
promptly. 

 All Single Person Discounts are now 
checked monthly with a credit reference 
agency. 
 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Opening Debit Reconciliation     1  

System Access   1    

Discounts   1  2  

Quality Checks     1  

Inspections     1  

Total   2  5  

 

Page 90



APPENDIX 1 

Creditor Payments 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 Energy bills should be periodically reviewed 
by a member of the Assets team to ensure 
that the invoices are reasonable (e.g. 
spend is consistent). 

 

 No duplicate payments were identified 
during the audit. 

 Payments made via the purchase ledger 
are regularly reconciled to the nominal 
ledger Creditors control account. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Invoice Processing      4  

Credit Notes     1  

Procedure Notes     1  

Utility Bills   1    

Total   1  6  

 

Page 91



APPENDIX 1 

Strategic Partnerships  
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 An independent assessment should be 
undertaken on a periodic basis to 
determine whether value for money is 
being obtained and evidence of outcomes 
from partnership working towards service 
and/or corporate objectives can be verified. 

 A review of all partnerships should be 
undertaken to ensure that the terms, 
conditions and commitments of each 
partner are formally documented. 

 A register of partnerships has been 
compiled. 

 An external evaluation of partnership 
working arrangements has been 
undertaken. 

 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Partnership Reviews   1  1  

Register of Partnerships     1  

Partnership Risks     2  

Agreements / Terms of Reference   1  3  

Total   2  7  

 

Page 92



APPENDIX 1 

Budgetary Control 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

  The 2017/18 budget was approved by the 
Corporate Select Committee in February 
2017 and uploaded to Integra on 31

st
 March 

2017. 

 Budgets were reported to Committee in 
accordance with the budget setting 
timetable, and the overall budget position is 
monitored promptly and regularly 
throughout the year. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Financial Reports      1 

Total      1 

 
  

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2017/18 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 30th APRIL 2018 

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

 

Procurement 6 1 0  0 0 3  2 2 4  3 3 Satisfactory 

Housing Rents 2 2 0  0 0 2  2 0 2  2 0 Satisfactory 

Cemeteries 10 2 0  0 0 3  2 2 9  9 9 Satisfactory 

Payroll Expenses 9 1 0  0 0 2  1 1 8  4 4 Satisfactory 

Corporate Project Management 8 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 10  10 10 Satisfactory 

Disabled Facilities Grants Assurance               N/A 

Land Charges 2 3 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  1 1 Satisfactory 

Conservation Grants 5 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  4 4 Satisfactory 

Horticulture 9 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 6  1 1 Satisfactory 

Capital Contract Management      } 6 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 6  3 2 Satisfactory 

Housing Planned Maintenance    }                

Safeguarding Children & V A 12 3 0  0 0 3  1 1 12  2 2 Satisfactory 

Elections 15 3 0  0 0 3  1 1 15  2 2 Satisfactory 

Planning Policy 3 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  0 0 Substantial 

Housing Advice 8 1 0  0 0 2  0 0 7  0 0 Satisfactory 

Emergency Planning / BCP 16 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 15  6 6 Satisfactory 

Development Control Section 106 3 4 0  0 0 2  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

Data Protection & Info Governance 15 0 0  0 0 4  0 0 11  2 2 Satisfactory 

Licensing               Work In Progress 

Freedom of Information               Management Response 

Regeneration               Work In Progress 

Treasury Management 1 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 Substantial 

Sundry Debtors 3 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 

Carelink               Quality Control Stage 

NNDR               Work In Progress 

Council Tax 7 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

Legal Services               Work In Progress 

Housing Strategy               Work In Progress 

Creditor Payments 7 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 6  0 0 Satisfactory 

General Ledger               Work In Progress 

Strategic Partnerships 9 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 7  0 0 Satisfactory 

Budgetary Control 0 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 Substantial 

Payroll               Work In Progress 

Recovery               Work In Progress 

Housing Benefits               Work In Progress 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 182 0    35    147     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  9 7  49 46  

Key: 
Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2016/17 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION 

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

 

Housing Rents 5 2 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Democratic Services 11 3 0  0 0 0  0 0 14  14 14 Satisfactory 

CCTV 9 1 0  0 0 2  1 1 8  6 6 Satisfactory 

Right to Buy 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Taxi Licensing 15 8 1  1 1 6  6 6 16  16 16 Limited 

Bank Contract 5 1 0  0 0 3  2 2 3  3 3 Satisfactory 

Tourism 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  4 4 Satisfactory 

Capital Accounting 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Street Cleansing 7 2 0  0 0 2  2 2 7  7 7 Satisfactory 

Social Media 5 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 7  7 7 Satisfactory 

Housing Tenancy Allocation 6 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 4 Satisfactory 

Bacs Transmissions 8 1 0  0 0 2  2 2 7  7 7 Satisfactory 

Food Safety 6 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 6  5 5 Satisfactory 

Grounds Maintenance 10 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 8  7 7 Satisfactory 

Performance Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

Parking 18 2 0  0 0 2  2 2 18  13 13 Satisfactory 

Assets & Facilities 6 1 0  0 0 4  2 2 3  1 1 Limited 

Human Resources 9 1 0  0 0 1  1 1 9  9 9 Satisfactory 

Sports Development 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Risk Management 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 Satisfactory 

Treasury Management 1 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 Substantial 

Housing Repairs & Maintenance 9 4 0  0 0 2  0 0 11  7 7 Satisfactory 

Commercial Properties 6 1 0  0 0 3  2 1 4  2 2 Satisfactory 

Corporate Governance 7 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 7  7 6 Satisfactory 

Sundry Debtors 3 3 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

General Ledger 1 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

Recovery 5 1 0  0 0 1  1 0 5  5 1 Satisfactory 

Budgetary Control 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Payroll 8 3 0  0 0 2  2 2 9  7 7 Satisfactory 

Creditor Payments 6 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

NNDR 4 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 3  3 3 Satisfactory 

Housing Benefits 4 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Council Tax 8 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 6  6 6 Satisfactory 

Postal Arrangements 7 3 0  0 0 2  1 1 8  0 0 Satisfactory 

Housing Strategy 0 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 Substantial 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 248 1    45    202     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  1 1  37 35  175 169  

Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 
  

Item  
July 
 2018 

Oct 
 2018 

Feb 
 2019 

May 
 2019 

Details  

INTERNAL AUDIT      

Internal Audit Progress Report     
Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key 
performance information. 

Annual Audit Plan    
 To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan. 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
   To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion 

on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment. 

Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA  
   To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of 

the Council’s system of internal audit. 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

   
To consider updates to the formal document that 
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility.  

EXTERNAL AUDIT      

Audit Committee Update  

 
 
   

A summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that the Committee may wish to 
consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the 
audit – where not covered by other items on the 
agenda. 

Audit Fee Letter    
 Letter setting out annual audit fee . 

Audit  Plan 
  

  
Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit 
consider as part of their work, the audit approach and 
the result of any interim work 

Audit Findings Report   
  

 
To consider the external auditor’s report to those 
charged with governance on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion. 

Annual Audit Letter 
 

  
 To consider the external auditor’s annual report on 

their overall assessment of the Council. 

Certification of Claims & Returns Annual 
Report 

  
 

 Report summarising the findings from work to certify 
grant claims made to the government.. 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
  

 
 To consider the risk assessment and understanding of 

management processes. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 11



 

Item  
July 
 2018 

Oct 
 2018 

Feb 
 2019 

May 
 2018 

Details  

FINANCE      

Statement of Accounts   
  To review and approve the Council’s annual 

Statement of Accounts. 

Treasury Management Update    
 Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 

Management position to date and the projected 
outturn. 

Annual Treasury Management Report    

 To recommend to Council for approval the annual 
Treasury Management Report summarising 
performance and compliance with the Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators. 

Treasury Management Strategy 
  

 
 Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

CORPORATE      

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)  
   To review and approve the Annual Governance 

Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation 
process and supporting evidence. 

AGS Progress Against Action Plan 
 

  
 Report on progress made against the actions raised 

as part of the previous years Annual Governance 
Statement process. 

Risk Management Update 
 

   
Report on developments in the Council’s risk 
management arrangements. 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

   
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial 
February) 

Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy 
 

   
To consider updates to the Council’s Anti-Fraud & 
Corruption Policy. 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy 
& Procedures 

 
   

To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures 

Whistleblowing Policy 
 

   
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing 
Policy. 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE      

Agree Programme of Work     To agree future work programme of A&R Committee. 

Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee 
inc. Terms of Reference 

 
   To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of 

the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

 
  

P
age 100


	Agenda
	2 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 External Audit Planned Audit Fee 2018/19
	5 External Audit Update
	6 Revised Treasury Strategy 2018-19
	7 Amendment to Accounting Policy - Property, Plant and Equipment
	8 Whistleblowing - Update
	Whistleblowing Update App 1

	9 Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2018/19
	Annual Audit Plan 2018-19 App 1

	10 2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report
	Internal Audit HPBC Periodic Report Feb-April 2017-18 Appendix 1
	Internal Audit HPBC Periodic Report Feb-April 2017-18 Appendix 2
	Internal Audit HPBC Periodic Report Feb-April 2017-18 Appendix 3

	11 Work Programme

